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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
- IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, . :
‘ Case No.: BC376095
Plaintiff, '
v.

PERMANENT INJUNCTION

AND FI_NAL JUDGMENT
HOME DEPOT U.S.A., Inc., a Delaware CEPES
Corporation,

(Version Revised 9/07)
Defendant. : | -

It appearmg to the Court that the Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the
Parties; that Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA (hereinafter “the People”)
by and through the EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Attomey General of the State of California,
BRETT J. MORRIS, Deputy Attorney General, and ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO, City
Attorney of the City of Los Angeles, Patty Bilgin, Supervising City Attorney, STEVE COOLEY,
District Attorney of Los Angeles County, STANLEY P. WILLIAMS, Assistaﬁt Head Deputy
District Attorney, DANIEL J. WRIGHT, Deputy District Attorney, DEAN D. FLIPPO, Distﬁct
Attorney of Monterey County, MATT B.OG.OSHIAN, Deputy District Attorney, ROD
PACHECO, District Attomey.of Riverside County, STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN, Deputy
District Attorney, JAMES P. WILLETT, District Attorney of San Joaquin County, DAVID J.

IREY, Deputy District Attorney, and DOLORES A. CARR, District Attorney of Santa Clara

1

Permanent Injunction and Final Judgment




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

( e
County, JOHN FIORETTA, Deputy District Attomey, and Defendant, HOME DEPOT US.A,
INC., a Delaware Corporation (hereinafter “Home Depot”), by and through its attorneys
O’MELVENY & MYERS, JAMES R. ASPERGER, have executed a STIPULATION FOR
ENTRY OF FINAL JUDGMENT, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and have executed an
Amendment to the Stipulation for Entry of Final Judgment, attached hereto as Exhibit A-1,
which recite, among other things the consent of the Pérties to the filing and entry of this
PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND FINAL JU DGMENT by the Court; and that there is good
cause for the entry of the Permanent Injunction and Final Judgment. |

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED:
1. JURISDI.CTION

The Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles, has subject matter jurisdiction

ovet the matters alleged in this action and personal jurisdiction over the Parties to this Permanent

Injunction and Final Judgment (the “Final Judgment”).
2. STATUTORY PAYMENTS AND MONETARY LIABILITY

2.1  Payment: Home Depot shall pay a total of Nine Million, Nine Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($9,900,000.00), which shall be allocated as follows: |
a. Civil Penalties: Seven Million, Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand
Dollars ($7,250,000.00), to be disbursed as set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto.
b. Costs: One Million, Three Hundred Thousand Dollars
($1,300,000.00), as partial recovery of costs incurred by the People in connection with the
investigation of this matter, to be disbursed as set forth in Exhibit C, attached hereto.

C. Supplemental Environmental Projects: One Million, Three

Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($1,350,000.00), to be applied to the projects set forth in

Exhibit D, attached hereto.

2.2  Additional Environmental Training Programs: Plaintiff acknowledged
and confirmed that prior to the entry of this Final Judgment, Home Depot provided the funds to
be contributed to the environmental training programs described more fully in Exhibit E,

attached hereto.
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2.3  Additional Obligations to Implement Environmental Commitments:
Home Depot shall adopt and implement the Additional Environmental Commitments described
more fully in Exhibit F, éttached hereto.

24  Procedure for Payment: Home Depot shall satisfy its payment
obligations to the People under Paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2 as follows: |

a. The disbursement of all of the payments to be made by Home

Depot to the People pursuant to Paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2 of this Final Judgment shall be the
responsibility of a Payment Administrator who has been designated by the People. The Payment
Administrator is David J. Irey, Deputy District Attorney for the San Joaquin County District
Attorney’s Office. '

'b. The payments required of Home Depot pursuant to Paragraphs 2.1
and 2.2 shall be made by certified or cashier’s checks or wire transfer to the Payment |
Administrator. All payments made by check shall be delivered to the following address:

San Joaquin County District Attorney’s Office
Attention: David J. Irey
222 E. Weber Avenue, Room 202
Stockton, CA 95202
In the alternative, payments may be made by wire transfer and such transfers
shall be electronically transmitted to an account and routing number as directed in writing by the
People to Home Depot following the entry of this Final Judgment. |
| C. Home Depot shall deliver to the Payment Administrator the
aforementioned payments set forth in Paragraph 2.1within twenty (20) days of the Court’s entry of
this Final Judgment. In the alternative, payment may be made by wire transfer and such transfers
shall be electronically transmitted to an account and routing number as directed in writing-by the
People to Home Depot within twenty (20) days following the entry of this Final Judgment. The
Payment Admim'stfator shall be responsible for disbursjng the settlement funds to the entities
identified in Exhibits B, C, D, and E in accordance with the terms of this Final Judgment and
applicable Exhibits.
/11

3

Permanent Injunction and Final Judgment




(@)

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

o0 =

d. A photocopy of all of the payments made by Home Dep‘ot pursuant
to Paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2 (or electronic confirmation of the wire transfer) shall be sent, at the same
time that they are delivered or transferred for.payment, to each of the People’s representatives
identified in Paragraph 5.

3. PERMANENT INJUNCTION

Subject to Paragraph 11.2 and pursuant to provisions of Health and Safety Code sections
25181 and 25516.2, Business and Professions Céde section 17203, and the Court’s equitable powers,
Home Depot shall undertake the fbllowing actions related to: (a) Covered Facilities that have not
been permanently closed as of the date of entry of this Final Judgment by the Court; and, (b) any
newly constructed facilities that Home Depot shall open after entry of this Final Judgment. This
Permanent Injuhction shall not apply to: (a) any facility that Home Depot may acquire after entry of
this Final Judgment; or, (b) any facility once it has been closed and no hazardous material or
hazardous waste remains at the premises. Any violation ofthe Permanent Injunction required by this
Final Judgment shall be considered separate and in addition to any violation of the stémtory or
regulatory requifements.

3.1  Licensed Hazardous Waste Haulers: Home Depot shall only engage in the
transportation of hazardous waste, or transfer custody of hazardous waste for transport tohazafdous
waste transporters, in compliance with Section 25163 of the California Health and Safety Code.

3.2  Certification of Hazardous Waste Program: Within 30 days of entry of
this Final Judgment by the Court, and annually thereafter for the duraﬁon of the Permanent
Injunction, Home Depot shall submit a certification to the People that an HHM III Prog:z’im, oran
equivalent program to that produced by Settling Defendant on September 18, 2007, to each of the
undersigned offices acting on behalf of the People, has been adopted and administered for the
duration of the year at each of the Covered Facilities that contain or generate hazardous materials
br hazardous waste in the State of California. In addition, Home Depot shall provide an annual
certification to the People beginning bn the same date as the other certifications required hereunder
in 2008, and continuing through the duration of the Permanent Injunction, that Home Depot has

reviewed the HHM III or equivalent program and has updated that program to address intervening
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|| changes in appliéabfe California laws relating to hazardous waste. As used in this paragraph,

“equivalent program” shall mean a program that achieves equivalent compliance with the HWCL
in all material respects. For the duration of the Permanent Injunction, at the close of each quarter
of each year Home Depot shall provide in accordance with the notice provisions of Paragraph 5 a
copy of the most current version of the programs administered pursuant to this paragraph. The
copies provided shall be electronically red-lined to speciﬁéally identify any additions or deletions -
made to each program as compared to the last version of that program provided to the People.

3.3  Certification of Document Retention: Within 30 days of entry of this Final .
Judgment by the Court, and annually thereafter for the duration of the Permanent Injunction, Home
Depot shall submit a certification that, to the best of Home Depot’s knowledge and belief, (jalifornia
governmental notices of violations and inspection reports (collecﬁvely “Inspections”) relating to the
violations alleged .in the Complaint that are received by a Covered Facility or the Store Support
Center of Home Depot, and any associated responsive correspondence (“Responses™), have been
retained by Home Depot. True and correct copies of such Inspections and Responses, and all
attachments thereto, shall be provided on a quarterly basis to.the San Joaqu.in County District
Attorney’s Office and to the California Attorney General’s Office. |

3.4  Hazardous Waste Training: Home Depot shall maintain and administer a
program to provide training to such employees in California as are required to be trained in
hazardou_s waste management procedures pu'rsuanf to California Health and Safety Code section
25123.3(h) and any other regulations applicable to the Covered Facilities, and shall maintain
documentation of such training as provided under that pfogram for the duration of this Permanent
Injunction. Home Depot contends that as of the date of the entry of this Final Judgment, the Covered
Facilities qualify as small quantity generators or conditionally exempt generators and that at the time
of the entry of this Final Judgment training for large quantity generators is not requirgd for the
Covered Facilities. |

3.5  Hazardous Materials Training: Home Depot shall maintain and administer
a program to provide training to such employees in California as are required to be trained in

hazardous materials handlin'g procedures pursuant to California Health and Safety Code section
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25504 and all other training requirements pursuant to Chapter 6.95 and its implementing regulations
applicable at the Covered Facilities, and shall maintain documentation of such training as provided
under that program for the duration of this Permanent Injunction.

3.6  Hazardous Waste Transport Containers: Home Depot shall maintain and
administer a corporate policy that requires hazardous waste transporters that transport hézardous
waste from Covered Facilities for off-site disposal to use Department of Transportation-approved
containers, in accordance with Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, section 66262.30.

3.7  Fire Codé Program:

a. Except as provided in subdivision (c) of this Paragraph, prior to the .'
execution of the Stipulation to the Entry of Final Judgment, Home Depot shall have provided to the
People a proposed Fire Code Program that has been developed to comply with appliéab_le Local,
State, and Uniform fire codes (hereinafter “the fire codes”). Home Depot shall adopt and begin to
administer this Fire Code Program at all Covered Facilities that are “Home Depot” branded retail
stores prior to the entry of this Final Judgment by the Court. At all Covered Facilities that are not
“Home Depot” branded retail stores, Home Depot shall have delivered to each facility a
communication that requires each facility to comply with the fire codes prior to the entry of this Final
Judgment. Home Depot shall develop an enhanced version of the existing fire code procedures (an
“interim Fire Code Program™) and adopt and begin to administer the interim Fire Code Pfégram at
all Covered Facilities that are not “Home Depot” branded retail stores prior to entry of the Final
Judgment by the Court. Home Depot then shall promptly review and evaluate compliance with the
fire codes at all Covered Facilities that are not “Home Depot” branded retail stores to identify
whether any modifications to the interim Fire Code Program may be necessary. Home Depot shall
adopt and begin to administer the revised Fire Code Program at all Covered Facilities that are not
“Home Dépqt” branded retail stores by January 15, 2008. As used in this paragraph, “equivalent
program” shall mean a program that achieves equivalent compliance with the fire codes in all
material respects.

b. Home Depot shall initiate the process of applying for any variances

or opinions from the State Fire Marshal relating to the issues described in Exhibit H, attached hereto,
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within 60 days after entry of this Final Judgment énd'thereaﬂer promptly exhaust all administrative
and/or legal remedies relating to such variances.

c. The People shall not pursue any violations of this -P_ermanent
I'njuriéti'on against Home Depot based on any aIleged violation or penalty relating to the issues # 3,
7, and 8 identified in Exhibit H, attached hereto, through and until October 15, 2007, and issues #
1, 2, 4, 5, and 6 identified in Exhibit H through and until November 30, 2007. However, this
exclusion shall not apply to any release or incident involving an imrrrinent risk of death, serious
bodily irrjury, explosion, or fire. Home Depot rr_ray provide notice of this Final Judgment to any
Certified Unified Program Agency (“CUPA”) and local fire department in California at the time of
execution of the Stipulation to the Entry of Final Judgment by the Parties, and may request that any
agency provide corrrments or objections. If alocal fire department pursues any enforcement action
relating to violations of the fire codes alleged to have occurred prior to October 15, 2007 ‘and
November 30, 2007, as applicable, Home Depot may notify the relevant agency of this Stipulation

to the Entry of Final Judgment.
d. BylJ ariuary 15, 2008, Home Depot shall submit a certification to the

People that Home Depot has adopted and is administering a Fire Code Program in the State of

California at all Covered Facilities that are subject to the.ﬁre codes. For the duration of this

‘Permanent Injunction, Home Depot also shall annually submit a certification to the Pé_ople that

Home Depot administered for the duration of the previous year the Fire Code Program in the State
of California at all Covered Facilities that are subject to the fire codes. As used in this paragraph,
“Fire Code Program” shall mean a program that achieves equivalent compliance with the ﬁre codes
in all material respects. For the duration of the Permanent Injunction, at the close of eacrh quarter
of each year Home Depo‘t shall provide in accordance with the notice, provisions of Paragraph 5 a
copy of the most current version of the programs ‘administered pursuant to this paragra'_tlph. The
copies provided sheill be electronically red-lined to specifically identify any additions or deletions
made to each program as compared to the last version of that program provided to the People.
111
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4.  MATTERS COVERED BY THIS FINAL JUDGMENT
‘41 This Final Judgment is a final and binding resolution and settlement of all
Claims that have been alleged, or Claims that could have been asserted within the scope of the
allegationé set forth, in the Complaint in this matter up until execution of the Stipulation for Entry
of Final Judgment by the Parties, according to statute, regulation, or ordinance by or through the
People of the State of California (“Covered Matters™), against Home Depot and its subsidiaries,
affiliates and corpofate parents, and each of their affiliates and parents, Covered Facilities,

successors, heirs, as_signs; and their respective officers, directors, partners, employees, agents,

representatives, property owners, and facility operators (“Entities Covered by Settlement”). The

People further covenant not to-sue the Entities Covered by Settlement for any Covered Matter.
Except as expressly provided herein, each Party shall bear its own attorneys’ fees and costs.

In the event that litigation is filed by an entity which is not a party to this
action against one of the Entities Covered by Settlement based upon Claims allegéd in the
Complaint, or which could have been asserted based on the Claims alleged in the Comialaipt, Home
Depot shall notify the People within thirty (30) days of service of such litigation on Homé Depot.
If the People determine that the subsequent litigation is barred by the principles in this paragraph,

the People will not oppose Home Depot in arguing that the subsequent litigation is barred by the

principle of res Judicata. No language in this paragraph nor any language in paragraph 3 will

preclude Home Depot from assérting in any subsequent litigation any and all legal and equitable
defenses regarding compliance with any provision in this Final Judgment or the laws or regulations
cited in this Final Judgment or cifed in the Complaint, including, but not limited to, rés judibaté.

4.2 . Theprovisions of Paragraph 4.1 are effective as of the date of the enfry of this
Final Judgment but the continuing effect of such provisions is expressly conditioned on Home
Depot’s full payment of the civil penalty, costs and other commitment of payments specified in
Paragraphs 2.1, 2.2, and 2.3 of this Final Judgment.

4.3  Paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 have no effect on the ability of the People to enforce
the terms of this Final Judgment, or to pursue or file a separate dr additional action for any

subsequent violation of statutory or regulatory requirements. This Court retains exclusive
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jurisdiction to address any future claims for injunctive relief, penalty assessment or other relief for
the Covered Facilities against Home Depot arising from or related to any alleged or actual violations
of this Final Judgment. . |

4.4 Aﬁy violations oflaw, statute, regulation or ordinance, if any, by Home Depot
which are not based on Claims alleged in the Complaint, or are not addressed as a Covered Matter
in this Final Judgment, or which occur or exist after this Final Judgment is entered, are not resolved,
settled or covered by this Final Judgment.

4.5  Home Depotshall not sue or pursué any civil or ad'ministrative claims against
the People or ageﬁcies of the State of California, or any counties of the State of California, or any
Fire department or agency, or any Certified Unified Pfogram Agency, Participating Agency or
Unified Pfogram Agency as those terms are defined pursuant to California Health and Safety Code,
section 25281, subdivisions (d)(1), (2) and (3) (pollectively “Agencies”), or their officers, employees,
representatives, agénts or attorneys, arising out of or related to any matter expressly addressed by this
Final Judgment; provided, however, that if any Agencies initiate claims against Home Deppf, Home
Depot reserves any and all rights to pursue any and all rights, claims, derﬁands and defenses against
such Agencies.

4.6  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Final Judgment, any claims or
causes of action arising out of past or future releases, spills, leaks, discharges or disposal of

hazardous wastes or hazardous substances caused or contributed to by Home Depot that may have

-occurred or may occur at a location that is not a Covered Facility for:

a. performance of cleanup, corrective action or response action;
b. criminal penalties, civil penalties, damages, injunctive relief; or,
c. recovery of response costs,

are not resolved by this Final Judgment, and such claims or causes of action, if any, are reserved by
the People of the State of California; provided, however, that this exclusion does not apply to any
matter asserted against the Home Depot arising out of or relating to the handl_ing, disposal and/or
transportation of hazardous materials and/or waste by EI, Slate, the 3E Company, Estes Trucking
Company (“Estes”), Exel, and any subsidiary; affiliate, or agent of these foregoing entities. The

9
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Parties have stipulated that nothing in this Paragraph 4.6 is intended to restrict or limit the scope of
the release for Covered Facilities as set foﬁh in Paragraph 4.1,

4.7  Except as provided by this Final Judgment, the Parties reserve the right to
pursue any claims not related to Covered Matters and any defense to such claims (“Reserved
Claims”). | |

4.8 Inany subsequent action that may be brought by the People t6 enforce any
Reserved Claims or claims otherwise excluded from this Final Judgment, Home Depot will not
assert, plead or raise égainst the People in any fashion ény defense or avoidance claiming that such
failure to'bring such claims as part of this action constitutes claim-splitting, laches or any other lack
of timeliness. This Paragraph'-does not affect any statute of limitétions, if any, which may be
applicable to any Reserved Claims or claimé otherwise excluded from this Final Judgment.

4.9 Any event that is beyond the control of Home Depot and that preveﬁts Home
Depot from timely performing any obligation under Paragraph 3 of this Final Judgment, despite
Home Depot's best efforts to fulfill the obligation, is a “force majeure” event. The requireﬁent that
Home Depot exercise “best efforts to fulfill the obligation’; includes the requirement tﬁat Home
Depot use Home Depot's best efforts to anticipate any potential force majeure event and use best
efforts to address the effects of any potential force majeure eveﬁt (1) as it is occurring, and'(2)
following the force majeure event, such that the delay is minimized to the greatest extent I‘_possib_le.
“Force majeure” does not include Home Depot's financial inability to fund or complete the
obligation. |

5. NOTICE

All submissions and notices required by this Final Judgment shall be sent to:

Plaintiff

Brett J. Morris, Esq.

Deputy Attorney General
Office of the Attorney General
1515 Clay Street, 20" Floor
P.O. Box 70550

Oakland, CA 94162-0550

Brett. Morris@doj.ca.gov

and to:
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David J. Irey, Esq.

Supervising Deputy District Attorey
San Joaquin County

San Joaquin County Courthouse

222 East Weber Avenue, Room 202
Stockton, CA 95202
david.irey@sjcda.org

Home Depot:

Celia J. Peressini, Esq.

Senior Corporate Counsel

The Home Depot U.S.A., Inc.

Store Support Center '

2455 Paces Ferry Road, Bldg. C-20
- Atlanta, GA 30339

Celia_Peressini@homedepot.com

and to: Debra S. Belaga, Esq.

O’Melveny & Myers LLP
275 Battery Street
San Francisco, CA 94111

dbelaga@omm.com

Any Party may change the contact person or the address for purpose of notices to that Party
by specifying a new contact person or address in a notice delivered in writing to the person to whom
notice shall be provided under this Paragraph. All notices and other communications required or
permitted under this Final Judgment that are addressed as provided in this Paragraph are effective
(i) upon delivery if delivered personally or by overnight mail; (ii) five (5) days following deposit in
the United States mail, postage prepaid, if delivered by mail; or, (iii) the day that electronic mail is
sent if sent before 5 p.m. to the electronic mail addresses of the designated recipients fpr notice

concurrent with sending the notice by overnight mail.

6. . NECESSITY FOR WRITTEN APPROVALS

All approvals and decisions of the People regarding any matter requiring approval or decision
of the People under the terms of this Final Judgment shall be communicated in writing to Home
Depot. No informal oral advice, guidance, sugg¢stions, or comments by employees or officials of
the People regarding submissions or notices shall be construed to relieve Home Depot of its
obligations under this Final Judgment. All approvals and decisions of Home Depot regarding any
matter requiring approval or decision of Home Depot which are required to be communicated to the

People under the terms of this Final Judgment shall be communicated in writing to the People.
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7. EFFECT OF JUDGMENT
Except as expressly provided in this Final Judgment, nothing in this Final Judgment is
intended nor shall it be construed to preclude the People or any state agency, department, board or
entity, or any county, or any Certified Unified Program Agency, Participating Agency, Unified -
Program Agency or any other local agency from exercising its authority under any law, statute, or
regulation at the Covered Facilities or any other facility addressed or identified in this Final

Judgment. Except as expressly provided in this Final Judgment, Home Depot retains ‘all of its

defenses to the exercise of the authority by any of the aforementioned agencies or entities.

8 NO WAIVER OF RIGHT TO ENFORCE

The failure of the People to enforce any provision of this Final Judgment shall neither be
deemed a waiver of such provision nor in any way affect the validity of this Final Judgment. The
failure of the People to enforce any such provision shall not preclude it from later enforcing the same
or any other provision of this F inal J udgment. No oral advice, guidance, suggestions, or cbmments
by employees or officials of any Party regarding matters covered in this Final Judgment shall be
construed to relieve any Party of its.obligations required by this Final Judgment. |

9. REGULATORY CHANGES

Nothing in this Final Judgment shall excuse Home Depot from meeting any more stringent
requirements which may be imposed hereafter by changes in applicable and legally binding

legislation or regulations.

10. APPLICATION OF FINAL JUDGMENT

This Final Judgment shall apply to and be binding upon Plaintiff, Home Depot, and the
successors or assigns of each of them; provided, however, that Paragraph 3 shall not apply to a
Covered Facility that is sold or otherwise transferred to a person or entity that is not associated with

Home Depot.
11. CONTINUING JURISDICTION

S

11.1  The Court shall retain continuing jurisdiction to enforce the terms of this Final
Judgment and to address ahy other matters arising out of or regarding this Final Judgment. The

People may move this Court to enjoin Home Depot from any violation of any provision of this Final
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Judgment. The Parties shall meet and confer prior to the filing of any motion relating to this Final
Judgment, any dispute regarding Home Depot’s compliance with any requirement of the Permanent
Injunction, or any dispute regarding Home Depot’s adminisltration of the HHM III or Fire Code
Progfams, and thé Parties shall negotiate in good faith in an effort to resolve any dispute without
judicial intervention. If the Parties- are unable to resolve a dispute during meet and conferl
discussions, either Party may move this Court seeking a resolution of that dispute by the Court. - Any

Party may invite any interested third party state or local governmental entity or agency to participate

| in any meet and confer discussion, and with the Court’s consent, to participate in any coﬁrt

proceeding under this paragraph. Home Depot reserves its right to set forth any defenses to alleged
violations, and the People reserves its rights to respond to any alleged defenses, before the Court.
11.2 At any time fifty-eight (58) months after the date of entry of this Final '
Judgment by the Court, any Party may provide notice to the Court (which shall be servéd on all
Parties) that the Permanent Injunction-provisions of Paragraph 6 of this Final Judgment should
expire and have no further force or effect (“Notice of Termination). The Permanent Injunction
provisions of Paragraph 3 will be of no further force or effect sixty (60) days thereafter, ﬁnless_ the
People file a motion contesting the expiration of the Permanent Injunction provisions of Paragraph
3 within forty (40) days of receipt of the Notice of Termination. With the Court’s coﬂsent, this
motion filed by the People shall be set for hearing no later than sixty months (60) months after entry
of this Final Judgment by the Court. In any event that such a motion is filed, none of the contested
injunctive provisions of Paragraph 3 will terminate pending the Court’s ruling on the motion. The
People reserves its rights to contest termination exclusively on the grounds that Home Depot has not
substantially complied in material respects with the injuncti\‘/e provisions of Paragraph 3 or has not
been reasonably diligent in administering a HHM III Program or a Fire Code Program, and to offer
any evidence relevant to such motion. Home Depot reserves its rights ;co respond on any ground
raised in this motion and to offer any evidence relevant to such contesting motion filed by the
People. The provisions of the Permanent Injunction in Paragraph 3 will expire and be of no further
force or effect unless the Court (upon consideration of the Parties’ pleadings and arguments, if any)

determines that the expiration of the provisions would not be in the interest of justice, because the
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Home Depot has not substantially complied in material respects with the injunctive provisions of
Paragraph 3 or has not been reasonably diligent in administering a HHM Il Program or a Fire Codé
Program. The termination of any of the Permanent Injunction provisions of Paragraph 3 shall have
no effect on Home Depot’s obligation to comply with requirements imposed by statute, regulation,
ordinance, or law.

12. ABILITY TO INSPECT AND COPY RECORDS AND DOCUMENTS

On reasonable notice and subject to all of_the defenses Home Depot would have to requests
for documents made by subpoena or other formal legal process or discovery employed by the People,
the following duly authorized representative of the undersi gned offices shall be permitted to inspect
and copy such records and documents in the possession of Home Depot as may be réasonably
necessary to determine whether Home Depot is in compliance with the terms of this Final Judgment:
David .J . Irey of the San Joaquin County District Attorney’s Office, and Brett J. Morris of the
California Attorn;ay General’s Office. Nothing in this paragraph is iht_ende’d to require access to or
production of any documents which are pfotected from production by the attorney-client privilege,
attorney work product doctrine, or any other applicable privileges, defenses, exémptions, or
immunities afforded to Home Depot under law. Home Depot shall retain for a minimum of three |
(3) years the following documents, regardless of whether Home Depot or a contractor prepares the
document: manifests, shipping documents, inspections forms, sweep logs, and records of attendance
pertaining to training, as required by the procedures of HHM IIl. However, the Parties agree that
Home Depot may not be deemed in violation of this Paragraph 12 for failure to maintain such
records unless Home Depot fails to exercise reasonable diligence in administering this record
retention requirement. Except as described in this paragraph and in Paragraph 3, noth'iﬁg in this
paragraph is intended to require Home Depot to keep any records beyond the Home Depot’s normal
records retention requirements, including but not limited to policies regarding backup tapes for

electronic documents.

13. CERTIFICATION

Whenever this Final Judgment requires the certification by the Home Depot, such

certification shall be provided by a Home Depot representative at a mariagerial level in charge of

14
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environmental compliance matters, or by an officer of the corporation. Each certification shall read

as follows:

To the best of my knowledge, based on information and belief and after reasonable
investigation, I certify that the information contained in or accompanying this.
submission is true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are civil and
criminal penalties for submitting false information,

14. ENFORCEMENT OF JUDGMENT

In the event that a Party brings an action to enforce any of the terms of this Firlal Judgment,

‘the prevailing Party shall be entitled to its reasonable costs, including attorney’s fees and costs,

including-any costs for expert witnesses or other costs.

15. PAYMENT OF LITIGATION EXPENSES AND FEES '

Home Depot shall pay its own attorney’s fees, expert witness_fees and costs, and all other
costs of litigation and investigation incurred to date.

16. COOPERATION BY HOME DEPOT

Home Depot shall, at the People’s reasonable request and upon reasonable notice, provide
documents in Home Depot’s possession or control to the People for use as evidence in potential legal
actions against EI, Slate, the 3E Corhpany, Estes, Exel, and any subsidiary, affiliate, or agentof thesé
foregoing entities; provided, however, that this obligation sha-lll terminate no later than two years
after the date of entry of this Final Judgment and shall not require Home Depot to alter its normal
retention policies (including but not limited to policies regarding backup tapes for électronic
documents). Nothing in this paragraph is intended to require access to or production of any
documents which are protected from disclosure by the attorney-client privilege, aﬂorﬂey work
product doctrine, or any other applicable privileges, defenses, exemptions, or immunitieé afforded
to Home Depot under law, nor does it waive any of the objections or 'defenses to which Hoﬁe Depot
would be entitled in responding to requests for documents made by subpoena or other formal legal

process or discovery.

17. INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS

Each of the Exhibits is incorporated herein by reference.

/11
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18. MODIFICATION OF FINAL JUDGMENT
This Final Judgment may be modified only upon written consent by the Parties hereto and

the approval of the Court as provided for by law.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

[t A7

Jibfton

JUDGE OF T UPERIOR COURT
LOS ANGELES OUNTY SUPERIOR COURT

16
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EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Attorney General [Exempt from fees pursuant to
of-the State of California : Government Code Section 6103
TOM GREENE o : : '
Chief Assistant Attorney General '
THEODORA P. BERGER
Senior Assistant Attorney General
KEN ALEX :
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
BRETT J. MORRIS, SBN 158408 -
Deputy Attorney Gefhxcral :
1515 Clay Street, 20 Floor (
P. % Box 70550 RECEIVED
Oakland, CA 94612-0550
Telephone: (510) 6222176 - AUG 1.7 2007
. Fax: (510) 622-2270 ' ;
G10 - DEPT. 32

Attorneys for Plaintiff,
People of the State of California
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

. PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, o
Case No.:
‘Plaintiff, | -
v.

STIPULATION FOR ENTRY
OF FINAL JUDGMENT .

HOME DEPOT U.S.A., Int., a Delaware (Section 664.6, C.C.P.)

Corporation, and DOES'1 through 99,

A Defendants,

WHEREAS, the PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA (hereinafter “the People™)
have investigated compliance by Home Depot U.S.A., Inc. (hereinafter “Settling Defendant” or
“Home Depot”) with: (a) Chapters 6.5 and 6.95 of Division 20 of the Califomia‘ Health and
Safety Code; (b) Section 17200 et seq. of the Business and Professions Code; (c) California
Labor Code Division 5, Parts 1, 6, ; and 11; (d) California Vehicle Code. Division 11, Chaptér
12; Division 12, Chapter 5; Division 13, Chapter 5; and Divisions 14.1, 14.7 and 14.8; and (e)
associated implementing regulations pcrtaining to each of the foregoing; all relating to handling,
disposal, spill, release, reporting, transportation, labeiing, mé;'king, cleanup and any other

1 :
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requirements relating to, arising out of or involving hazardoﬁs waste and/or hazardous materials,
L In addition, the People have investigated compliance with Local, State and Uniform Fire Codes.
! WHEREAS, Home Depot has coopcratéd with the People’s investigation and voluntarily.
produced docux;ments and provided extensive information to the People., Since at least July 2005,
quc Dcpot has dedicated significant additional resources towafds_cnvironmentai compliance
and has further enhanced its hazardous waste and _hazardoﬁs materials compliance programs.
Home Depot contends that its Handling Hazardous Materials program (hereinafter “HHM [1")
has been desigl_léd to be a state-of-the-art program and includes policies and procedures that_in
some cases are more stringent than applicable law. )

WHEREAS, the People have engaged in settlement neéotiations with the S_cttliﬁg
Defendant prior to the iniﬁatior_l of litigation. In these x;egotiatio_ns, the People were represented

by the Attorney General of the State of California, the City Attorney of Los Angeles, and the -

|l District Attomneys for the Counties of Los Angeles, Monterey, Riverside, San Joaquin, and Santa

Clara. These offices were supported by the investigational efforts of numerous prosecutorial

ofﬁces and local agencies throughout the State of California.

WHEREAS the People and the Settling Defendant (heremaftcr collectlvely referred toas
“the Parties” or individually as “Party”) have agreed to settle the matters under investigation and
the facts, causes of action, violations, and claiﬁis alleged in the Compléint filed in this matter
(collectively “Claims”), without litigation and by lodging this proﬁosed STIPULATION FOR
ENTRY OF FINAL JUDGMENT (“Stipulation”) an_ci a proposed PERMANENT INJUNCTION
AND FINAL JUDGMENT (“Finél Judgment”) simultaneously with the Complaint. The People
believe that the resolution of the Claims as set forth in this Stipulation and the proposed Final
Judgment is fair and reasonable and fulfills the People’s .enforcement objectives, that né further
qction is warranted concerning the Claims except as provided pursuant to the Final Judgment,

and that the proposed Final Judgment is in the best interest of the general public.

/1
/17
/11
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1. INTRODUCIION |
_ * In this action, the People filed a civil COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION,
CIVIL PENALTIES AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF (“Complaint”) in the Los Angeles
Superior Court against Settling Defendant. The Parties settle this action on the terms set forth 1n _
this Stipulation and request that this Court enter the proposed Final Judgment incorporating the
terms of this Stipulation. '

2. COMPLAINT -

The Complaint in this action alleges that the Settling Defendant engaged in conduct that
violated provisions of: (a) Chapters 6.5 and'6.95 of Division 20 of the California Health and
Safety Code; (b) Seéﬁon 17200 et seq. of the California Business and Professions Code; (c)
California Labor Code Division 5, Parts 1, 6, 7 and 11; (d) California Vehicle Code Division 11,
Chapter 12; Division 12, Chapter 5; Division 13, Chapter 5; and Divisions 14 1, 14.7 and 14.8;
and, (e) associated implementing regulations pertaining to each.of the foregoing; all relating to
handling, disposal, spill, release, repérting, transportation, labeling, marking, cleanup gnd any
other requirements relating to, ansmg out of or involving hazardous waste and/or hazardous

materials. In addition, the Compléint alleges violation of Local, State and Uniform Fire Codes.

1| A true and qdnect copy of the Complaint is attached as Attachment “A” to this Stipulation. The

facilities that are addressed by this Stipulation and the Final Judgment afe_ any and aﬂ facilities
that are or were owned, operatéd or acquired by Home Depot in the State of California as of the
date that this Stipulation is executed by all Parties, including but not limited to open, closed and '
acquired facilities (hereinafter “Covered _Facilitiés”). The specific list of Covered Facilities
attached to the Complaint shall not be to the exclusion of other facilities that may have been
inadvert.entlyl omitted from the list, where the Parties agree in writing that an omitted facility
should be included. As to aﬁy facilities that have béen omitted, Settling Defendant shall provide
the folio’wing to the People ona quarterly basis: (a) written notice of such additional facilities
after the omission comes to the attention of the Home Depot’s Store Support Center; and (b) to
the best of Defendant’s knowledge and belief, copies of any notices of violation and/or

governmental inspection reports applicable to such facilities that have been received by that

" Stipulation for Entry of Final Judgment
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facility since January 1, 2003. If, after the'People have had sufficient time in which to review the
alleged reason for the omission, and after Home Depot has established to the satisfaction of the
People that the omiséion was inadvex’tent, the Parties shall agree in Writing that the additional
facility be included in the Final Judgment.
3. JURISDICTION

For purposes of this Stipulation and the Fihal Judgment_; only, the People and Setﬂing
Defendant agree that the Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles, has subject matter
jurisdictidn over the matters aileged in this action and personal jurisdiction over the Parties fol the
Stipulation and the Final Judgment. ‘

4, SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTED CLAIMS

This Sﬁpulaﬁoh for Entry of Final Judgment is neither an admission nor a denial by
Settling Deféndant regarding any issue of law or fact in the above-captioned ﬁlaﬁcr or any

violation of any law. The Parties enter into this Stipulation pursuant to a compromise and |

‘settlement of disputed claims, as set forth in the Complaint, for the purpose of furthering the

pu'blic interest, Settling Defendant waives its right to a hearing on any matter covered by the’
Complaint prior to the entry of the Final Judgment. The Parties agree that this Stipulation is not
admissible in anir proceeding involving non-parties to the Final Judgment. Settling Defendant
reserves the right, for pﬁIposeé of non-party proceedings, to deny thé issues of law and fact in the
Fiﬁal Judgment and exhibits hereto. - . | |

s. PAYMENTS
5.1  Payment: Settling Defendant shall pay a total of Nine Million, Nine

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($9,900,000.00), which shall be allocated as follows:
a. Civil Penaltics:. Seven Million, Two-Hundred and Fifty Thousand

Dollars ($7,250,000.00), to be disbursed as set forth in Exhibit B attached to the Final Judgment.
b. Costs: One Million, Three Hundred Thousand Dollars

($1,300,000.00), as partial recovery of costs incurred by the People in connection with the
investigation of this matter, to be disbursed as set forth in Exhibit C attached to the Final.
Judgment.
_ 4
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c. Supplemental Environmental Projects: One Million, Three
Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($1,350,000.00), to be applied to the projects as set forth in

Exhibit D attached to the Final Judgment.
52  Additional Envnronmental Traimng Programs. Plamtlﬂ‘ acknowledges

and confirms that prior to the entry of the Stipulation in this matter, Settling Defendant provided

{
the funds to be contributed to the environmental training programs ‘described more fully in

Exhibit E attached to the Final Judgment.. In the event that the Court does not enter the proposed
Final Judgment, these funds shall be returned to Séttling Defendant, with any interest accrued.

5.3  Additional Obligations to Implement Environmenial Commitments:
Settling Defendant shall adopt and implement the Additional Environmental Commitments
described more fully in Exhibit F attached to the Fmal Judgment,

54  Procedure for Payment. Settling Defendant shall satisfy its payment .
obligations to the People ander Paragraphs 5.1 and 5.2 as follows:

a. The disbursement of all of thé payments to be made by Settling

Defendant to the People pursuant to Paragraphs 5.1 and 5.2 of this Stipulation and the Final |
Judgment shall be the responsibility of a Payment Administrator who has been designated by the
People The Payment Administrator is David J. Irey, Deputy District Attomey for the San -

Joaqum County District Attorney’s Office.
b. The payments required of the Settling Defendant pursuant to

|| Paragraphs 5.1 and 5.2 shall be made by certified or cashier’s checks or wire transfer to the

Pay'men_t Administrator. All payments made by check shall be delivered to the foilowing

address:

San Joaquin County District Atiorney’s Office
Attention: David J. Irey

222 E. Weber Avenue, Room 202

Stockton, CA 95202

_ In the alternative, payments may be made by wire transfer and such transfers
shall be electronically transmitted to an account and routing number as directed in writing by the

People to Settling Défendant following the entry of the Final Judgment.

LN

5 .
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c. Settling Defendant shall deliver to the Payment Administrator the
aforementidned payments set forth in Paragraph 5.1within twenty (20) days of the Couft’s entry of
the Final Judgment. In the alternative, payment may be made by wire transfer and such transfers
shall be electronically transmitted to an account and routing number as directed in writing by the
‘People to Settling Defendant within twenty (20) days fdllowing the entry of tﬁe Final Judgment, The
1Paj'ment Administrator shall be résponsible for disbursing the settlement funds to the enﬁﬁes
identified in Exhibits B, C, D, and E in accordance with the terms of the Final Judgment and
‘applioable Exhibits. | '
' d. A photoc;opy of all of the payments made by Settling Defendant

pursuant to Paragraphé 5.1 and 5.2 (or electronic confirmation of the wire transfef) shall be sent, at

| the same timé that they are delivered or transferred for payment, to each of the People’s -

representatives identified in Paragraph 8.
| 6. PERMANENT INJUNCTION

Subject to Paragraph 16.2 of the Final Judgment and pursuant to pfovisions of Health and
Safety Code sections 25181 and 25516.2, Business and Professions Code section 17203, and the
Court’s equifable powers, Settling Defendant shall undertake the following actions related to: (a)
Covered Facilities that have not been permanently closed as of the date of entry Qf the Final
Judgment by the Coust; and, (b) any newly constructed facilities that Settling Defendant shall open
-after entry of the Fiﬁal Judgment. The Permanent Injunction shall not apply to: (a) any facility that

Settling Defendant may acquire after entry of the Final Judgment; or, (b) any facility once it has been
closed and no hazardous material or hazardous waste remains at the prexhises. Auny violation of the
Permanent Injunction required by the Final Judgment shall be considered separate and in addition

to any violation of the statutory or regulatory requiréments.
61 Licensed Hazardous Waste Haulers: Settling Defendant shall only engage

1in the transportation of hazardous waste, or transfer custody of hazardoﬁs waste for transport to
hazardous waste transporters, in compliance with Section 25163 of the Caiifpmia Héalth and Safety
Code. | | '

i
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62 . Certiﬁcaﬁon of Haz_ir_dous Waste Progra'm: Within 30 days of entry of
the Final Judgmént by the Court, and anhually thereafter for the dmaﬁon of the Permanent-
Injunction, Setﬂing Defendant shall suﬁmit a certification to the.People that an HHM T Program,
or an equivalent program to that attached as Exhibit G to the Final J udgment (filed under seal), has
been adopted and administered forrthc duration of the year at each of the Covered Facilities that

contain or generate hazardous materials or hazardous waste in the State of California, In addition, -

Settling Defendant shall provide an annual certification to the People beginning on the same date as

the other certifications fequired. hereunder in 2008, and continuing through the duration of the
Permanent Injunction, that Settling Defendant hasreviewed the HHM ITI or equivalent program and
has updated that program to address intervening changes in applicable California laws relating to
hazardous waste, As used in this paragraph, “equivalent program” sha.lll-mean & program that
aéhicves equivalent compliance with the‘HWCL in all material respects. For the duration of the
Permanent Injunction, at the close of each quarter of each year Settling Defendant shall provide in -
accordance with the notice provisions of Paragraph 8 a copy of the most current version of the

programs admmlstcred pursuant to this paragraph. The copies prov1ded shall be electromcally red-

'lmed to specifically 1dent1fy any additions or deletions made to each program as compared to the last

version of that program provided to the People.
6.3  Certification of Document Retention: Within 30 dajrs of entry of the Final

Judgment by the Court, and annually thereafier for the duration ofthe Permanent Injunction, Settling

‘Defendant shall submita certification that, to the best of Settling Defendant’s knowledge and belief,

California governmental notices of viélations and inspection reports (collectively “Inspections™)
relaﬁng to the violations alleged in the Complaint that are received by a Covered Facility or the Store
Support Center of Home Depot, and any associated responsive correspondence (“Responses™), have
been retained by Settling Defendant. True and ooﬁect copies of such Inspections and Responses,
and all attachments thefeto, shall be provided on a quarterly basis to the San Joaquin County District

Attorney’s Office and to the California Attorney General’s Office.
6.4  Hazardous Waste Training: Settling Defendant shall ‘maintain and

administer a program to provide training to such employees in California as are required to be trained
7
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in hazardous waste maﬁagement’ procedures pursuant to California Health and Safety Code section
25123.3(h) and any other regulations applicable .to the Covered Facilities, and shall maintain
documentation of such training as provided under that program for the duration of the ,Pennanént '
Inju‘nctioﬂ. Settling Defendant contends that as of the date of the entry of this Stipulation, the
Covered Facilities qualify as small quantity generators or conditionally exempt generatofs and that -
at the time of the entry of this Sﬁpulaﬁontmining for large quantity generators is not required for
the Covered Facilities. _
6.5 Hazardous Materials haining: Settling Defendant shall maintain and
administera progfam to prov.ide training to such employees m California as are reqﬁﬁed to be trained
in hazardous rﬁaterials handling prc.)cedures pursuant to California Health and Safety Code éegtion
25504 and all other training requirements pursuant to Chapter 6.95 and its implementing regulations
applicable at the Covered Facilities, and shall maintain documentation of such training as provided
under that program for the duration of the Permanent Injunction. | o

6.6  Hazardous Waste Transport Containers: Settling Defendant shall maintain
and administer a corporate polidy that requifes hazardous waste transporters that transport hazardoils
waste from Covered Facilities for off-site dispOéal to use Dcpax’uﬁent of Transportation-approved.
containers, in accordance with Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, section 66262.30.

6.7  Fire Code Program: |

| a, Except as provided in subdivision (c) of this Paragraph, pripr to the

execution of the Stipul,atibn for Entry of Final Fadgment, Settling Defendant shall provide to the -

|| People a proposed Fire Code Program that has been déveloped to comply with applicable Local,

State, and Uniform fire codes (hereinafter “the fire codes™). Settling Défendant shall adopt and begin.
to administer this Fire Code Program at all“Covered Facilities that are “Home Depot” branded retail
stores prior to the entry of the Final Judgment by the Court. At all Covered Facilities that are not
“Home Depot’;- branded retail stores, Settling Defendant shall dcliver.- to each facility a
communication that requires each facility to comply with @e fire codes prior to the entry of the Final
Judgment. Settling Defendant shall déve'lop an enhanced version of the existing fire code procedures
(an “intéﬁm_F ire Code Program”) and édopt and begin to administer the interim Fire Code Program

8
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at all Covered Facrhtles that are not “Home Depot” branded retail stores by September 15,2007,
Settling Defendant then shall promptly review and evaluate comphance w1th the fire codes at all
Covered Facilities that are not “Home Depot” branded retail stores to identify whether any
modifications to the interim Fire Code Program may be necessary. Settling Defendant shall adopt
and begin to administer the revised Fire Code Program at all Covered Facilities that are not “Home
Depot” branded retail stores by January 15, 2008 As used in this paragraph, “equivalent program”
shall mean a program that achieves equivalent compliance with the fire codes in all material respects. -
b. Settling Defendant shall initiate the process of applymg for any
variances or opinions from the State Fire Marshal relatmg to the issues described i in Exhlbrt H,
attached to the Final Judgment, within 60 days after entry of the Final Judgment and thereafter

promptly exhaust all administrative and/or legal remedies relating to such variances.

c. The'People shall not pursue any violations of the Permanent Injtmcﬁon

against Settling Defendant based onany alleged violation or penalty relating to the is'sue_s #3,7,and

8 identified in Exhibit H attached to the Final Judgment through and until October 15, 2007, and

issues # 1, 2, 4 5, and 6 identified in Exhibit H attached to the Final Judgment through and until

November 30, 2007. However, this exclusmn shall not apply to any release or incident mvolvmg. '
an imminent risk of death, serious bodily injury, explosion, or fire. Settling Defendant may provide
notice of the Final Judgment to any Certified Unified Program Agency (“CUPA”) and local fire .
department in California at the time of execution of the Stipulation to the Entry of Final Judgment
by the Parties, and may request that any agency. provide comments or objections. If a local-\ ﬁre
department pursues any enforcement action relating to violations of the fire codes alleged to have

occurred prior to October 15, 2007 and November 30, 2007, as ap_plicable, Settling Defendant may

|| notify the relevant agency of this Stipulation to the Entry of Final ‘Judgment.

d By January 15, 2008, Settlmg Defendant shall submit a certlﬁcatlon

to the People that Setthng Defendant has adopted and is admrmstermg a Fire Code Program in the
State of California at all Covered Facilities that are subject to the fire codes. For the duration of the

'Permanent Injunction, Settling Defendant also shall annually submit a ceitification to the People that

Settling Deferidant administered for the duration of the previous year the Fire Code Program in the

9
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State of California at all Covered Facilities that are subject to the fire codes. As used in this
paragraph, “Fire Code Program” shall mean a program that achieves equi"valeﬁt compliance with the
fire codes in all material respects, For the duration of the Permanent Injunction, at the close of each.
duarter of each year Settling Defendant shall provide in accordance with the notice provisions of
Paragraph 8 a cop); of the most current '»-rersion of the programs administered pursuant to thls
paragraph. The copies provided shall be electronically red-lined to spcciﬁcally identify any additions
or deletions made to each program as compared to the last version of that pro gram. provided to the
People. 1

7. MATTERS TO-BE COVERED BY THE FINAL JUDGMENT

| 7.1  This Stipulation and the eﬁtry of the Final Judgment shall be a final and

‘binding resolution and settlement of all Claims that have been alleged, or Claims that.could have

been asserted within the scope of the allegations set forth, in the Complaint in this matter up until
execution of this Stipulation by the Parties, according to étaWtc, regulation, or ordinance by or

through the People of the State of California (“Covered Matters™), against Settlixig Defendant and

_' its subsidiaries, affiliates and corporate parents, and each of their affiliates and parents, Covered

Facﬂitics, successors, heirs, assigns, and their respective officers, directors, partners, employees,
agents, representatives, property owners, and faci_]ity operators (“Eﬁﬁtics Covered by Settlement”).
The People further covenant not to sue the Entities Covered by Settlement for any Covered Matter.
Except as éxpressly provided herein, each Party shall bear its own attorneys’ fees and costs.

In the event that litigation. is filed by an eﬁﬁty which is not a party to this
action against one of the Entities Covcrefi by Settlement based upon Claims alleged in the
Comblaint, orwhich could have becﬂ assertea based on the Clainis alleged in the Complaint, .Settling
Defendant shall notify the People within thirty (30) days of service of such litigation on Settling
Defendant. If the People determine that the subsequent iitigation is barred by the principles in this
paragraph, the People will not oppose Settling Defendant in arguing that the subsequent litigation
is barred by the principle of res judicata. No language in this ﬁaragraph nor any language in
paragraph 6 will preclude Settling Defendant from asserting in any subsequent litigation any and all
iegal and equitabie defenses régardjng compliance with any provision in the Final Judgment or the

10
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laws or regulations cited in the Final Judgment or cited in the Complaint, including, but not limited:
to, res judicata. -
7.2 Theprovisions of Paragraph 71 are effective as of the date of the entry ﬁf the
Final Judgment but the continuing effect of such provisions is expressly conditioned on Settling
Defendant’s full.payment of the civil pe_nélty‘, costs and other comnﬁhnént of payments speciﬁed in.
Paragraphs 5.1, 5.2, and 5.3 of the Final Judgment.

7.3 = Paragraphs 7.1 and 7.2 have no effect on the ability of the People to enforce
the terms of the Final Judgment, or to pursue or file a sebarate or additional action for any
subsequent violation of statutory or regulatory requirements. The Partles intend that the Court

retains exclusive jurisdiction to address any future claims for injunctive rehef penalty assessment

—
()

11| or other relief for the Covered Facilities against Settling Defendant ansmg from or related to any

12
13
14
15
16

alleged or actual violations of the Final Judgment.

74  Any violations of law, statqtc, regulation or ordinénce, if any, by Settling
Defendant which are not based on Claims alleged in the Complaint, or are not addressed as a
Covered Ma&qr in the Final Judgment, or which occur or exist after entry of the Fmal Judgment is
fully executed, are not resolved, settled or covered by this $Stipulation or the Final Judément.'

7.5  Settling Defendant covenants not o sue or pursue any civil or administrative |

18
19

claims agai_nst the People or agencies of 'thc Staté of California, or any counties of the State of
California, or any Fire department or agency, or any Certified Unified Pro gram Agency, Participating
Agency or Unified Program Agency -as those terms are defined pursuant to California Health and
21 || Safety Code, section 25281, subdivisions (d)(1), (2) and (3) (collectively “Agencies"),_or_ their-
22 || officers, employees, representatives, agents or attorneys, arising out of or rélat;ed to any matter
23
24
25
26 |1
27
28

expressly addressed by this Stipulation or the Final Judgment; provided, however, that if any
Agencies initiate claims against Settling Defendant, Settling Defendant reserves any and all righs |
to pursue any and all rights, claims, demands and defenses against such Agencies.

- 7.6  Notwithstanding any cher provision of the Final Judgment, any claims or
causes of action arising out of past or future releases, spills, leaks, discharges or disposal of

/11
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hazardous wastes or hazardous substances caused or contributed to by Settling Defendant that may

have occurred or may occur at a location that is not a Covered Facility for:

a. performance of cleanup, corrective action or response action;
b. ° criminal penalties, civil penalties, damages, injunctive relief; or,
c.  recovery of response costs,

are not resolved by the Final Judgment, and such claims or causes of action, if any, are reserved by
the People of the State of California; provided, however, that this exclusion does not apply to any
matter asserted against the Settling Defendant ariéing out of or relating to.the handling, disposal
and/or transportation of hazardous materials and/or waste by EI, Slate, the 3E Coﬁxpany, Estes
Trucking Company (“Estes™), Exel, and any subsidiary, affiliate, or agent of these foregoing entities. -
The Parties agree that nothhé in this.Paragmph 7.6 is intended to restrict or limit the scope of the
release for Covered Facilities as set forth in Paragraph 7.1. - | '

7.7 Bxcept as provided by the Final _Judgment, the Parties reserve the right to
pursue any claims not related to Covered Matters and any defense to such claims (“Reserved
Claims”). | -

7.8  In any subsequent action that may be brought by the People to enforce any
Reserved Claims or claims otherwise excluded from this settlement, Settling Defendant will not
assert, plead or raise against the People in any fashion any defense or avoidance claiming that such
failure to bn'ng such claims as part of this action constitutes claim-dplitting, laches or aﬁy other lack
of timeliness. This Paragraph does not affect any statute of limitations, if any, whlch may be
applicable to any Reserved Claims or clalms otherwise excluded from this settlement.

7.9  Anyevent thatis beyond the control of Settling Defendant and that prevents
Settling Defendant from timely performmg any obligation under Section 6 of the Final Judgment,
despite Settling Defendant's best efforts to ﬁllﬁ].l the obligation, is a “force majeure” event. The

|| requirement that Settling Deferidant exercise “best efforts to fulfill the obligation” includes the

requirement that Settling Defendant use Settling Defendant's best efforts to anticipate any potential
force majeure event and use best efforts to address the effects of any potential force majeure event
(1) as it is occurring, and (2) following the force majeure event, such that the delay is minimized to

_ 12 .
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the greatest extent possible. “Force majeure” does not iﬂclude Settling Defendant's financial

inability to fund or complete the 6b1igaﬁon.
8. NOTICE |
All submissions and notices required by the Final Judgmént shall be sent to -
Plaintiff: |
Brett J. Morris, Esq.
Deputy Attorney General .
Office of the Attorne ey General
1515 Clay Street, 20® Floor
P.O.Box 70550 =
Oakland, CA 94162-0550
Brett.Morris@doj.ca.gov
and to:

David J. Irey, Esq.

Supervising Deputy District Attorney
San Joaquin County '
San Joaquin County Courthouse

222 East Weber Avenue, Room 202
Stockten, CA. 95202
david.irey@sicda.or

Settling Defendant;

Celia J. Peressini, Esq.
. Senior Corperate Counsel
The Home Depot U,S.A., Inc.
Store Support Center
2455 Paces Ferry Road, Bldg. C-20
Atlanta, GA. 30339

Celia_Peressini@homedepot.com

and to:
Debra S. Belaga, Esq.
O’Melveny & Myers LLP

275 Battery Street
San Francisco, CA 94111

dbelaga@omm.com
Any Party may change the contact person or the address for purpose of notices to that Party

by specifying a new contact person or address in a notice delivered in writing fo the person to whom
notice shall be provided under this Paragraph. . All nbti_ces and other communications required or
permitted under the Final Judgment that are addressed as. providéd in this Paragraph are effective (i)
upon delivery if delivered personally or by overnight mail; (ii) five (5) days following deposit in the

13
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United States mdil, postage prepaid, if delivered by mail; or, (iii) the day that electronic mail is sent
H if sent before 5 p.m. to the electronic mail addresses of the designated recipients for notice
cbncun‘ent with sending the notice by qurnight mail, _ | |

9.  NECESSITY FOR WRITTEN APPROVALS

All app_rovals and decisions of the People regardfng any métter requiring approval or decision

of the People under the terms of this Stipulation shall be communicated in writing to Settling
Defcndanf. No informal oral advice; guidance, suggestions, or comments by employees or officials
of the People regarding submissions or notices shall be construed to relieve Settling Defendant of
its obligations under the Final Judgment. All approvals and dec_isioﬁs of Settling Defendant
regarding any matter requiring approval or decision of Settling Defendant which are requfred to be
-communicated to the People under the terms of the Final Judgment shall be communicated in writing
~t('_). the People. | | | |
10. . EFFECT OF FINAL JUDGMENT -
Except as expressly provided in the Final Judgment, nothing in this Stipulation is intended:
nor sﬁall it be construed fo preclude the People or any state agency, department, board or entity, or
-any county, of any Certified Unified Program Agency, Participating Agency, Unified Program.
Agency or any other locai agenéy from exercising its authorify under any law, statute, or regulation
at the Covered Facilities of any other facility addressed or identified in the Final Judgment. Except
as expressiy provided in the Final Judgment, Settling Defendant retains all of its défenses to the |
.exercise of the authority by any of the aforementioned agencies or entities.
" 11.  PLAINTIFF IS NOT LIABLE
" The Plaintiff shall not be liable for any injury or damage to persons or property resx_xlting. from
acts or omissions by Settling Defendant, its directors, bﬁ‘icers, emplbyees, agents, representatives
or contractors in carrying out activities pursuant to the Final Judgment, nor shaﬁ thePlaintiff be held
as a party to or guarantor of any contract entered into by Settling Defendaﬁt, its.directors, officers,
'employee_s, agents, representatives, or contractors in carrying out activities requiréd pursuant to the
Final Judgment, |
111/
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12. NO WAIVER OF RIGHT TO ENFORCE
_ The failure of the.People to enforce any provision of the Final Judgment shall neither be
deemed a wéi_ver of such provision nor in any way affect the validity of thé Final Judgment, The |
failure of the Peo_p le to enforce any such provision shall not preclude it from later enfbrcing the same
or any other provision-of tﬁe Final Judgment. No oral advice, guidance, suggesﬁons, or comments
by employees or officials of any Party regarding matters covered in the Final Judgmeﬁt shall be
construed to relieve any Party of its obligations required by the Final Judgment, ' |
13. REGULATORY CHANGES
Nothing in the Final Judgment shall excuse Settling Defendant from meeting any more
suingentfequircments Whiqh may be imposed hereaﬁef by chahges in applicablé and legally binding

legislation or regulations.

14. APPLICATION OF FINAL JUDGMENT

The Final Judgment shall apply to and be binding ubon Plaintiff, Settling Defendant, and the
successors or assigns of each of them; provided, however, that Paragraph 6 shall not apply to a

15 H Covered Facility that is sold or otherwise transferred to-a person or entity that is notassociated with

Settling Defendant.

15. AUTHORITY TO ENTER STIPULATION

Each signatory to this Stipulation certifies that he or she‘is fully authorized by the Party he .
or she represenfs to enter into this Stipulation, to execute it on behalf of the Party represented, and
to legally bind that Party. '
' 16.  CONTINUING JURISDICTION

16.1 The Coﬁr_t shall retain continuing jurisdiction to enforce the terms of the Final
Judgment and to address any other matters arising out of or regérding the Final Jud'ginent. 'lThe '
People may move the Court to enjoin Settling Defendant from any violationr of any provision of the
Final Judgment. The Pérties shall meet and confer prior to the filing of ahy motion relating to the
‘Final Jﬁdgment, any dispute regarding Settling D efendant’s compliance with any requirement- ofthe
Permanent Injunction, or any dispute regarding Settling Defendant’s administration of the HHM IIT

or Fire Code Programs, and the Parties shall negotiate in good faith in an effort to reéolve-any dispute

L’ : _ 15 ,
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without judicial intervention. If the Parties are unable to resolve a dispute during meet and confer
discussions, éitlier_ Party may move the Court seeking a resolution of that dispute by the Court. Any
Party may invite any interested third party state or local _governmentél entity or agency to participate

in any meet and confer discussion, and with the Court’s consent, to 'partioipa(e in any court

proceeding under this paragraph. Settling Defendant reserves its right to set forth any defenses to

alleged violations, and the People reserves its rights to respond to ény alleged defenses, before the:
Court.

| 162 At 'aﬁy time fifty-eight (58) months after the date of entry of the Final
Judgment by the Court, any Party may provide notice to the Court (which shall be served on all
Parties) that the Permanent Injlinction provisions of Paragraph 6 of the Fmal Judgmehf should expire
an(i have no further force or effect (“Notice of Termination™). The Permanent Injunction pfdvisions
of Paragraph 6 will be of no further force or effect sixty (60) days thereafter, unless the People file
a motion contesting the expiration of the Permanent Injunction provisions of Paragraph 6 within
forty (40) days of receipt of the Notice of Termination. With the Court’s consent, this motion filed
by the People shall be set for hearing no laterthan sixty months (60) months after entry of the Final
Judgment by the Court. In any event that such a motion is-filed, none of the gontested injunctive |
provisions of Paragraph 6 will terminate pending the Court’s ruling on the motion. The Peopig
reserves its rights to contest termination exclusively on the grounds that Settling Defendant has not
substantiaﬂy complied in material respects with the injunctive provisions of Paragraph 6 or has not
been reasonably diligent in administering a HHM I Program or a Firé Code Program, and to offer -
any evidence relevant to su;:h motion. Settling Defendant reserves its rights to respond on any
ground raised in this motion and to oﬁ"ef any evidence relevant to such contesting motion filed by )
the People. The provisions of the Permanent Injunction in Paragraph 6 will expire and be of no
further force or effect unless the Court (upon consideration of the Parties’ pleadings and arguments,
ifany) determines that the expiration of the provisions would not be in ﬂle interest of jﬁstice, because
the Settling Defendant has not substantially cbmplied in material respects with the injunctive
provisions of Paragraph 6 or has not been reasonably diligent in administering a HHM III Program
oraFire Code Program. The termination of any of the Permanent Injunction prdvisions of P aragraph

: 16
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6 shall have no effect on Settling Defendadt's obligation to comply with requirements imposed by
statute, regulation,_'ordinance, or law. _

17. NON-DISCHARGEABILITY OF OBLIGATIONS

Any payments required by Settling Defendant' pursuant to the Final Judgment are riot
dlschargeable in bankruptcy. | | | -

18. ABILITY TO INSPECT AND COPY RECORDS AND DOCUMENTS

On reasonable notice and subject to all of the defenses Settling Defendant would have to
requests for documents made by subpoena or other foxjmal legal process or discovery employed by

the People, the following duly authorized representative of the undersigned offices shall be permitted

'to irispect and copy such records and documents in the possession of Settling Defendant as may be

reasonably necessary to determine whether Settling Defendant is in compliance with the terms of the
Final Judgment: David J. Irey of the San Joaquin County District Attemey’s'Ofﬁee, and Brett J.
Moris of the California Attorney General’s Office. Nothing in this paragraph isintended to require -
access to or production of any documents which are protected from production by the attorney—chent .
privilege, attorney work product doctrine, or any other apphcable privileges, defenses, exemptlons
or immunities afforded to Settling Defendant under law. Settlmg Defendant shall retain for a

'muumum of three (3) years the following documents, regardless of whether Settling Defendant or

a contractor prepares the document: manifests, shipping documents, inspections forms, sweep logs,
and records of attendance pertaining to training, as required by the procedures of HHM III.
However, the Parties agree that Settling Defendant may not be deemed in violation of this Paragraph
18 for failure to maintain such records unless Settling Defendant fails to exercise reasonable
diligence in administering this record retention requirement. Except as described in this paragraph
and in Paragraph 6, nothing in this paragraph is intended to requir'e Settling Defendant to keep any
records beyond the Settling Defendant’s normal records retention requirements, inclﬁding But not
limited to policies regarding backup tapes for electronic documents. '

19. CERTIFICATION | |

Whenever the Final Judgment requires the certification by the Settling Defendant, such

certification shall be provided by a Settling Defendant representative at amanagerial level in charge

: . 17
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of environmental compliance matters, or by an officer of the cotporation. Each certification shall

read as folows:
To the best of my knowledge, based on information and belief and after reeisonablé :
investigation, I certify that the information contained in or accompanying this
submission is true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are civil and
- criminal penalties for submitting false information.
20. ENFORCEMENT QOF FINAL JUDGMENT
In the event that a Party brings an action to enforce any of the terms of the Final Tudgment,
the prevailing Party shall be entitled to its reasonable costs, including .atforney’s fées and costs,

including any costs for expert witnesses or other costs.

21. PAYMENT OF LITIGATION EXPENSES AND FEES -

Settling Deferidant shall pay its own attorney’s fees; expert witness fees and costs, and all
other costs of litigation and investigation incurred to date,

22. INTERPRETATION
This Stipulation and the Final ;Iudgmcnt shall be deemed to have been drafied equally by-all.

Parties hg’reto.. Accordingly, the Parties hereby agree that any and all rules of construction to the
effect that ambiguity is construed against the draﬁiﬁg Party shall bé inapplicable in any dispute:
concerning the terms, meaﬁiﬁg, or interpretation of the Final Judgment.

23. COUNTERPART SIGNATURES | |

This Stjpulation may be executed by the Parties in counterparts, and when a copy ié signed
by an authorized representative of each Party, the c;,ountelparcs of the Stipulation shall be effective
as if a single docurient were signed by all Parties.

24, COOPERATION BY SETTLING DEFENDANT

It is the intention of Settling Defendant to cooperate with the People in a’ddréssing potential
violations of environmental iaws by EI, Siate, the 3E Company, Estes, Exel, and any subsidiary,
affiliate, or agent of these foregoing entities. Settling Defendant agrees that, at the People’s
reasonable request and upon reasonable noﬁce, Settling Defendant will provide documents in
Settling Defendant’s possession or control fo the People for use as evidence in potential legal actions

against EI, Slate, the 3E Company, Estes, Exel, and any subsidiary, affiliate, or agent of these

N " Stipulation for Entry of Final Judgment
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fofe‘going entities; providéd, however, that this obligation shall terminate 1o later than two years.

2 || after the date of entry of the Final Judgment and shall not require Settling Defendant to alter its -

| normal retention policies (including butnot limited to policies regarding backup tapes for electronic

documents). Nothing in this paragraph is intended to require acceés to or production of any

product doctrine, or any other applicable privileges, defenses, exemptions, or immunities afforded

to Settling Defendant under law, nor does it waive any of the objections or defenses to which Settling

2
3
4
5 L] documents which are protected from disclosure by the attorney-client pxivﬂege, attorney work
i .
7
8 1 Defendant would be entitled in responding to requests for documents made by subpoena or other
9

formal legal_ process or discovery. _

25. INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS

Each of the Exhibits is incorporéted herein by reference.

26. ENTRY AFTER NOTICED MOTION _ _

This Stipulation for Entry of F iﬁal Judgment shall be brought before the Court for approval
on noticed motion and the Court shall Be requested to make a faii,neés determination in order to
ensure that the Final Judgment is fair and in the pubﬁ§ interest, By entering this Sﬁpulaﬁon, the
Parties represent to the Court that the Entry of the Final Judgment results in a full, fair, and final
resolution of tﬁe Claims which were or oéuld have been raised in the Complaint based on the Claims
alleged therein. Settling Defendant has i@dica_ted that it may provide written notice of the proposed
settlement to étate, county, municipal, and local officials with authority to bring any claims which
are designated in Paragraph 7.1 as matters covered by the Final Judgment. Settling Defendant
fepresents that if such notice is provided it will include a complete copy of the Final Judgment, the
moving papers in support of the motion for entry of the Final Judgmenf; and will specifically recite
the terms of Paragraph 7.1. | |

27. INTEGRATION =

This Sﬁpulaﬁon constitutes thé entire agreement between thé Parties and may not be

amended or supplemented except as provided for in the Final Judgment.

1
171
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28. MODIFICATION OF FINAL JUDGMENT

The Fmal Judgment may be modified onlyupon wntten consent by the Partxes hereto-and the

approval of the court as provided for by law.

IT IS SO STIPULATED.
FOR THE PLAINTIFF:

Dated: g-/ ’% ~ 07—

Dated;

EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Attorney General
of the State of California -
TOM GREENE
Chief Assistant Attorney General -
THEODORA P. BERGER
Senior Assistant Attomey General

-KEN-ALEX

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

Busp s

BRETT J. MORRIS

Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Plaintiff o
People of the State of California

ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO, City Attorney
of the City of Los Angeles

ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO, City Attorney
of the City of Los Angeles

20
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Dated:

28.

e

MODIFICATION OF FINAL JUDGMENT

" The Final Judgment may be modified only upon wﬁﬂen'éonsent by the Parties hereto and the

3 || approval of the court as provided for by law.

|| IT IS SO STIPULATED.
FOR THE PLAINTIFF:

Dated;

EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Attorney General
of the State of California
TOM GREENE
Chief Assistant Attorney General
THEODORA P. BERGER
Senior Assistant Attorney General\
KEN ALEX
Supemsmg Deputy Attorney General

BRETT J. MORRIS

Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Plaintiff

- . People of the State of California -

. ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO, City- Attomey

of the City of Los Angeles

/-1/3/,(/

OCKARDAJDELGADILKQ, City Attorney
of e Ci Los Angelgs

20
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Dated:

Dated:

. Dated:

91307

STEVE COOLEY, District Attorney

of the County of Los Angeles
STANLEY P. WILLIAMS

Assistant Head Deputy District Attomey
DANIEL J. WRIGHT

Deputy District Attorney

DANIEL JA¥RIGHT
Deputy District Attorney

DEAND. FLIPPO District Attorney

of the County of Monterey
MATT BOGOSHIAN
Deputy District Attorney

MATT BOGOSHIAN
‘Deputy District Attorney

ROD PACHECQO, District Attorney

of the County of Riverside
DEENA M, BENNETT

Supervising Deputy District Attorney
STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN

Deputy District Attorey

STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney
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Dated:

Dated: g”/g“d?

Dated:

STEVE COOLEY, District Attomey

of the County of Los Angeles
STANLEY P. WILLIAMS

Assistant Head Deputy District Attorney
DANIEL J, WRIGHT

‘Deputy District Attorney

DANIEL J. WRIGHT
Deputy District Attorney

- DEAN D. FLIPPO, District Attomey

of the County of Montercy
MATT BOGOSHIAN
Deputy District Attorney

MA'I"I‘ BOGOSH
Deputy District Eztl:(ney

ROD PACHECO, District Attorney

of the County of Riverside
DEENA M. BENNETT

Supervising Deputy District Attomey
STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN

‘Deputy District Attorney

STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney
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Dated:

STEVE COOLEY, District Attorney

Datéd:

of the County of Los Angeles
STANLEY P. WILLIAMS

Assistant Head Deputy District Attorney
DANIEL J. WRIGHT

Deputy District Attorney

DANIEL J. WRIGHT
Deputy District Attorney

DEAND FLIPPO District Attomey

Dated: (P;JQ'OZ

of the County of Montcrey
MATT BOGOSHIAN
Deputy District Attorney

MATT BOGOSHIAN
Deputy District Attorney

ROD PACHECQO, District Attorney

of the County of Riverside
DEENA M. BENNETT

Supervising Deputy District Attorney
STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN

Deputy District Attorney

/i 4) me’\
STEP X B, WEISSMAN '
Deputy District Attorney

21
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'Dated:

-
//3/4

Dated

Dated:

FOR THE SETTLING DEFENDANT:

Approved as to Form:

Dated:._

C

JAMES P. WILLETT, District Attorney

of the County of San Joaquin
DAVID J. IREY
Supervxsmg Deputy District Attomey

-'Dga\g?f IREY /
Supervising Depyty District

torney

DOLORES A. CARR, District Attorney.
of the County of Santa Clara

'JOHN FIORETTA

Deputy District Attorney

JOHN FIORETTA
Deputy District Attorney

GEORGE SHERMAN
Senior Vice President - Operations
The Home Depot U.S.A., Inc.

O’MELVENY & MYERS LLP
By:

JAMES R. ASPERGER
Attorneys for Defendant
The Home Depot U.S.A., Inc.
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‘|l Dated:.

Dated:

C

JAMES P. WILLETT, District Attomey

of the County of San Joaquin
DAVID J. IREY
Supervising Deputy District Attorney

DAVID J.IREY |
Supervising Deputy District Attormey

o daju42"/3 zo0
Dated:_ I ~ DOLORES A.CARR, District Attomey

of the County of Santa Clara’
JOHN FIORETTA
Deputy District Attorney

s oty

JOHN FIORETTA
Deputy District Attorney

Approved as to Form:

GEORGE SHERMAN
Senior Vice President - Operations
The Home Depot U.S.A., Inc.

O’MELVENY & MYERS, LLP

By: :

JAMES R. ASPERGER
Attomeys. for Defendant
The Home Depot U.S.A., Inc.

22
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Dated:

Dated:

FOR THE SETTLING DEFENDANT:

Dated: Mu: z /Y 2047

-Approved as to Form:

Dated: ﬂ;f‘"‘[ { 5] 7,097 _

JAMES P. WILLETT, District Attorney
of the County of San Joaquin :
DAVID J. IREY
Supervising Deputy District Attorney

DAVID J.IREY .
Supervising Deputy District Attorney .

DOLORES A. CARR, District Attorney
of the County of Santa Clara. -~
JOHN FIORETTA :
Deputy District Attorney

JOHN FIORETTA
Deputy District Attomey

/

. £ g ; M
GEORGE SHERMAN _
Senior Vice President - Operatio
The Home Depot U.S.A,, Inc.

O’MELVENY & MYERS, LLP
By: :

J S R. ASPERGER
ttorngys\for Deferdant
TheHome Depot U84, Inc.

22
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[Exempt from fees pursuant to

1 , D G. BROWN JR. Attorney General
| of the State of Califomia Government Code Section 6103 ]
2 || TOM GREENE -
. Chief Assistant Attorney General
3 || THEODORA P. BERGER
| Senior Assistant Attorney General
4 || KEN ALEX
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
5 || BRETT J. MORRIS, SBN 158408 :
Deputy Attorney General
6| .1515.Clay Street
: P. O, Box 70550
71 Oakland, CA 94612-0550
: Telephone (510) 622-2176
8 l Fax: (510) 622-2270
9 ] Attorneys for Plaintiff,
- || People of the State of California
10 : ._
" |- (Additional counsel on next pages)
11 - . ' _
12 L ' IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
13 . IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
14 . _ '
15| THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
. - _ ) | CaseNo.:
16 _ | Plaintiff, |
\ '
17. COMPLAINT FOR
- - PERMANENT INJUNCTION,
18]] HOME DEPOT U.S.A,, Inc., a Delaware CIVIL PENALTIES AND '
: Corporation, and DOES 1 through 99, OTHER EQUITABLE
19 o | RELIEF :
Defendants. -
20 (Health & Saf. Code, Div. 20,
Chapters 6.5 and 6.95; Bus. &
21 Prof, Code, § 17200 ef seq., Labor
. Code § 6300 et seq., California -
23 Fire Code)
23
24
25
26
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ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO City Attomey

af the City of Los Angeles

JEFFREY B. ISAACS, Chlef : ,
Criminal and Sp ecial Litigation Branch

PATTY BILGIN SBN 164090 -
Supervising Attorney

ELISE A. RUDEN

MICHELLE LYMAN _

Environmental Justice and Protection Unit
200 Notith Main Street, 5th Floor CHE
Los Angeles, CA 90012
Telephone (213)978-8097
Faocsimile; (213)978-8111

STEVE COOLEY, District Attornéy
of the County of Los Angeles
STANLEY P, WILLIAMS
Assistant Head Deputy District Attorney
DANIEL J, WRIGHT, SBN 129309
Deputy District Attomey
Consumer Protection Division
Environmental Law Section
201 N, Figueroa Street, Suite 1200
Los Angeles, California 90012
Telephone (213) 580-3209
Facsimile; (213) 202-5990

DEAN D. FLIPPO, District Attorney
‘of the County of Monterey

MATT BOGOSHIAN, SBN 137311
Deputy District Attomey

Environmental Prosecution Unit
1200 Aguajito Road, Reom 301
Monterey, California .93940
Telephone: (831) 647-7770
Facsimile: (831) 647-7762

ROD PACHECQ, District Attorney
of the County of Riverside
DEENA M. BENNETT
Supervising Deputy District Attorney

STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN, SBN 155454

Deputy District Attorney
4075 Main Street, 1* Floor
Riverside, California 92501
Telephone:' (951) 955-5400
Facsimile: (951) 955-5470
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JAMES P. WILLETT, Distriot Attorney
of the County of San Joaquin

DAVID J. IREY, SBN 142864

Supervising Deputy District Attomey
Environmental Prosecutions Unit -

Sani Joaquin County Courthouse, Room 202

-~ P.O.Box 990

Stockton, California 95201

Telephone: (209) 468-2400

Facsimile: (209) 468-0314

DOLORES A. CARR, District Attorney
of the County of Santa Clara

JOHN FIORETTA, SBN 104416
Deputy District Attomey

County Government Center, West Wing
70 W. Hedding Street
‘San Jose, Cali Eornia 95110
Telephone (408) 792-2638

- Facsimile: (408) 287-5076

Attorneys for Plaintiff, People of the State of California

PLAINTIFF, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, based on information

and belief; alleées as follows: | ' |
B PLAINTIFF |

1. Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA (“People”), bﬁn_gs this
action by and through Edmund G. Brown Jr., Attorney General of the State of Califomia ‘
(“Attomey General”), and by and through Rocky Delgad.ilio, City Attomney of the City of Los
Angeles; Steve Cooley, District Attorney ef Los Angeles County; Dean D. Flippo, Digtn'ct
Attorney of Monterey Comity; Rod Pacheco, District Attorney of the County of Riverside; James
P. Willett, bistrict Attorney of San Joaquin County; and Dolores A Carr, District Attorney of the
County of Santa Clara (collectively “Local Prosecutofs”).

2, Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code section 25-1 45.4, the Attorney
General may Bring a civil acfion in‘the name of the People of the 'Stete_ of California to enjoin any

violation of Chapter 6.5 of Division 20 of the California Health and Safety Code (hereinaﬁer

““Chapter 6.5) and to seek civil penalties for violations of the provisions of Chapter 6.5.

3 "
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3. Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code section 25182, the Local

Prosecutors at the request of & unified program agency may bring a civil actionin the name.of th

>People of the State of California to enjoin any v101at10n of Chapter 6.5 a.nd to seek civil penaltle<

for wolatlons of the provisions of Chapter 6.5 which are under the Junsdtctxon of the unified -
program agency. Several local agencies, environmental health departments and unified pr'ogram
agencies have requested the Local Prosecutors to bring a civil action in the name of the People of

the State of California to enjoin vlolatxons of Chapter 6.5, and to seek civil penaltles for

violations of the provisions of Chapter 6.5 that are under the Junsdl.ctlon of the agencies. |

4. Pursuant to the California Health and Safety Code sections 25514 and 25516.1,
the Aftorney General and the Local Prosecutors may bring an action for civil penalfies for
violations of California Health and Safety Code sections 25503.5 to 25505, inclusive, and
sections 25508 to 25520, inclusive. . Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code section -
25516, the Local Prosécﬁtors, when requested by an admhﬁsteﬁng agency, may bring an action to
enjoin a violation of Chapter 6.95 of Division 20 of the California Health and Safety Code |
(hereinaﬁer “Chapter 6.95 "). Several administering agencies have requested the Attorney -
General and the Local Prosecutors to bring an action to enjoiﬁ violations of Chapter 6.95, and to
seek civil penalties for violations of the provisions of Chapter 6.95 that are uﬁdér the jﬁn'sdiction
of the agencies.

5. Pursuant to California Business and Professions Code sections 17203, 17204, and
17206, the Attorney General and the Local P-rosecutors may bring actions in the name of the
Peoplé of the State 6f California in a superior court for an injunction against any _pérson who
enéages, had engaged, or pr(;poses to eﬁgage in unfair competition and for civil penalties for each
act of unfair competition. N _ |

6.  Asadopted in Part 9 of Title-24 of the Célifomia Code of Regulations, the
California Fire Code sets forth fire safety regulations consistent with nationally-recognized good

‘pra_cticcs for the safeguarding, to a reasonable degree, life and property from the hazards of fire

explosion, and dangerous conditions arising from the storage, handling and use of hazardous .

materials and devices, and from conditions hazardous to life or property in the use or occupancy

Coﬁiﬁl&inf for Permanent Injunction, Civil Penalties, and Other Equitable Relief
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7.  oPlaintiffbrings this..nactionr:wiiﬂmutépfejudiee.:to?any other action or ofaimis which

|l Plaintiff may have based on separategsifidepéndentiand unrelated violations arising out of matters
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ANT{HOMEDEPOT U:S:A. INC;::

+ 8. . v-Defendant .Homé %Bcpot@[zl;fs..,ﬁw:,dnc:;:(h"e‘reinaﬁera‘:éHomezDep6t*3)ais now and, at

|rinits:own. gapacity: and/er thfoughuaffiliates-itvthe:State-of Galifornia-at thefacilities identified in

¢ Exdiibit:Ay whieh-isineorporatedshereinsbyirefererice (heréinaftet collectivelyrefeired toras-

+i{Gavered Fagilities"), -:Hom’e_éﬂepot managed hazardous materials and liazatdoué wastes at

Covered Facilities that are off Were oWl

) Operatéd, vf #cqiiired throughout California. Home
Depot’s principaliaddress is-2455 iRaeés;fEerrya’Roa&,' Atlanta; Georgia: ThieRéoplé are informed

f;.—éand?helie‘ve, dnd thereon dllege; that HomeBepot-hds: aéi;uire_-adrén'fis‘:“an:ownet and/or operator of

- someior all:0fthe:Eovered: F aci:li.ties-:; -;Hoﬁréflﬂep'dffdms=f®1:a‘o_’p’"eratesfj1ﬁi®a1i:fo‘rniafoV-‘ér-‘ 200

' stores that séll'hazardous materials;-including-pool ch'émieals,:afp'estiqidesi -fetﬁiizers;--paints, :

ignitable liquids, aerosol products, and other flammable and corrosivé materials, Home Depot .

also gener ates quantities of hazardous Faste fronicither'spills:arith reléises, or from customer

returns of dﬁméged' or-spent packages ofhazardous materials.~ -

9. « DPefendant Homie Depots;or atall titnes :reie.vaﬁtto the-claims in this complaint

gwas,z.legall;yafe§p@ns-iblcrforroamp'l‘i'ancvc'ﬁwiﬂa thesprovisionsofthie California Health-and Safety

%
24
9.

»Code; including: Chapters 6:5:4nd:6195:6f Ei’.‘]x“nisiom:’l();@t it§ Covered:Fadilities. The People are
.vi-t;lfonn#?d and-believe and -ﬂienepnsqllegé».that Home Depotisrespotisible for the-operations of

-certain Coveréd Facilities in Califofnia, thatHome Depotcontrols the hazardous materials and

26| hazardous. wasté manageﬁlent decisions at those Covered:Facilities, that-Home Depot is aware of

“07.|| the-hazardousmaterials and hazardous waste-mandgement activities at those Coveted Fadilities,

"+, 28:||.that- Home Depot took actions that caused some or all of the violations alleged herein, and that

- 5 . e
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14.  The HWCL is the California malog of the federal Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. section 6901 ¢f seq. (“RCRA”). Pursuant to state and federal law, the
California Department of Toxic Substances Control (“DTSC”) administers the HWCL in lieu of
federal administration of RCRA in California. (See Health & Saf. Code § 25101, subd. .(d).) '
Federal law prohibits California from imposing “any requirements less stringent thén those
authorized under [RCRA]L" (42 US.C. § 6929) | |
- 15.  California law _ the HWCL - has in certain instances a more inclusiv’e'déﬁxﬁtion

of hazardous waste than doe-s fedetal_law. Hazardous wastes dxat are regulatéd under California
law but not fede_ral law are known as “non-RC_RA hazardous wastes.” | (Health & Saf, Code §
25117.9) | - |

16. Cbmpaniés that accumulate or generate hazardous waste in the course of their. -
operations and send that waste offsite for management are subject to certain regulatory
requiremerits. (See Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66262.10 ef seq.)

17.  Itisunlawful for any pefsbn to transpo& hazardous wastes unless the person holds
a valid registration issued by the DTSC, and it is unlawful for any ‘peréon to transfer custody of a
hazardous waste to a transporter who does nét hold a valia registration. (Health & Saf, Code §
25163, subd. (a).) California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66263.11, specifies the
procedure for a transporter fo apply to the DTSC and obtain regis'trati.on as a’hauler.

ENFQRCEMENT_ AUTHORITY UNDER THE HWCL

18.  The HWCL authorizes a Court to impose civil penalties under two distinct and

alternative provisions. Section 25189 of the California Health and Safety C‘oﬂe creates liability

for any negligent or intentional violation of the HWCL, or for any violation of any permit, rule,

regulation, standard, or requirement issued or promulgated pursuant to the HWCL. Section
25189.2 is a strict liability provision, which cteates liability for any violation of the HWCL, or
for any violation of any perinit, rule, regulation, standard, or requirement issued or promulgated
pursuant to the HWCL. . | _ | . |
19.  The HWCL, pursuant to California Health and Saféty Code sections 25181 and
25184, authorizes the Court to issue an c.erer that enjoins any ongoing or potential violation of
Complaint for Permanent Injunction, Civil Penalties, and Other Equitable _Relief
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promulgated pursuant to the HWCL. _
20.  Section 25181 of the California Health and Safety Code provides that when the

| DTSC or a unified program agency determines that any person has engaged in, is engaged in, or

-is about to engage in any acts or practices which constitute or will constitute a violation of any
provision of the HW CL or any rule regulation, or requirement issued or promulgated thereun&er,
and when requested by the DTSC or unified program agency, the Attorney General or ioeal
prosecutor may make an application to the superior court for an order .enje_ining such acts or
bractices, or for an order direeﬁng compliance, and upon an appropriate showing by the DTSC or
unified program agency that such person has engaged in or is about to engage in any such acts or
practices, a permanent or temporary injunction, restraining order, or other order may be granted.

21.  California Health and Safety Code section 25184 provides that in civil actions
brought pursuant to tile HWCL in which an injunetien or temporary restraining order is sought: |

it shall not be necessary to allege or preve at any stage of the proceeding that

irreparable damage will occur should the temporary restraining order, preliminary

. injunetion, or permanent injunction not be issued; or that the remedy at law is

- inadequate, and the temporary réstraining order, rehmmary injunction, or permanent
injunction shall issue withiout such allegations and without such proof. :

22.  The HWCL, in sections 25180 and 25185, authorizes the Califomia 'DTSC, and
properly designated local health agencies and unified program agencies, to enforce the standards |
codified in Chapter 6.5 and the regulations adopted pursuant to the California Health and Safety
Code, and to conduct iﬁspections '

_ GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

23. Plamtsz and Defendant Home Depot entered into a series of agreements to toll
( any applicable statute of limitations. Asa result of these agreements, the period of time from
July 25, 2005, through the date of the filing of tﬁe Complaint herein, inclusive, (the "Tolling
Period"), will not be included in computing the timelimited by any statute of limitatiex_ls under
the causes of action against Home Depot that may arise out of claims ceilered by fhe tolling

agreement. Those claims incluc_ie the claims that are brought in this action against Home Depot.

.8‘
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24, During times relevant to the allegations set forth in this Complaint, Home Depot
collected hazardous wastes that had been created, rcleése&, spilled, generated, or accumulated a
stores and placed those hazardous wastes in buckets of vafying colors for offsite di;posal. Hom
Dépot used several waste haulers to pick up and transport for disposal at licensed disposé_l '
facilities those hazardous wastes collected and stored at Home Depot stores in California.

During 2004, one of the haulers collecting and transliorting hazardous wastes from Home Depot

‘stores in California was Slate Tr_ansbortation Services (“Slate”) who was.subcontracted through

Environmental Industries (“EI”). que Depot subsequently learned that Slate was not licensed

‘nor authorized by the California Department of Toxic Substances Control (“DTSC”) in 2004 o

collect or transport hazardous waste in the state of California.

25.  Onthe momfng Qf May 13, 2004, an employee of Slate arrived at a Home Depot
facility in‘Playa del Rey; California. At the Home Depot store, the Slate employee handled the
hazardous materials and hazardous wastes stored in 5-gallon buckets at the Home Depot store by
combining the contents of the buckets into l'flrggr 55-gallon drum_s.' The coﬁtents of one of these
drums located at this Home Depot store exploded, causing a fire during regular business hours
'léading.:to the evacuation of store employees and customers, and requiring the Los Aﬁgeles _
County Fire Départment to respond,

26.  On May 14,2004, a separate Slate truck was inspected by the éalifomia Highway
Patrol (CHP) and the DTSC.in Ripon, California, located in San Joaquin County. That particular
Slate truck was ﬁulling #trailcr that contained numerous drums, other containers, and buckets of.
hazardous waste which had been collected from Home Depot stores éhd other businesses in
California, DTSC concluded that Slate improperly stored and labeled the hazardous wastes and
hazardous materials, and had not completed the required hazardous waste transportation o
manifests for hazardoué materials and hazardous wastes being transported in that truck.

27, - Throughout 2004, up until af least May of 2004, Slate was not licensed nor
authorized by the DTSC to collect or transport hazardous waste in the state of California.

128, InMarch of 2005, the Attorney General’s Office, along with the District Attomey
of San Joaquin, received from DTSC information related to an investigation of Slate for |
* Complaint for Permanent Injunction, Civil Penalties, and Other Equitable Relief
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numerous violations of hazardous waste transportation laws. - The Aftomey General’s Office and
the District Attorney of San Joaquin County joined with the District Attorneys’ offices in Los
Angéles County, Riverside County, Monterey County, and Santa Clara County, and with the City
Attorney of Los Angeles to coordinate investigation of Slate and Home Depot. The investigﬁtion
focused on vidl_aﬁons of California state and municipal laws regarding illegal storage, treaﬁrient, |
transportation, and disposal of hazardous th%, as well as comp,liimo’e with fire code and |
hazardous materi_als management plan requirements for each Home Depot ‘store and facility in - |
California. The investigation revealed that ﬁolaﬁom had been observed at certain Home Depot
stpfe's in the State of Célifornia during the preceding years, including violations that were
observed after the Playa del Rey fire.

29.  Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereupon alieges that Defendants ha.ve
violated provisions of the fbllowi-ng statutes, inclﬁding hnplemenﬁng regulations associated with

each of the statutes and any related permit, rule, stan_dard, or requirement issued or promulgated

pursuant to these statutes and any similar and related federal statutes and municipal and local

ordinances, at Covered Facilities within the time period applicable fo this action: Chapter 6.5 of
the California Health and Safety Code, section 25100 ef seg., Chapter 6.95 of the California
Health and Safety Cade, section 25500 et seq., Division 5, Chapters 1-8 of the California Labor
Code, section 6300 et seq., with respect to hazard@us substances, hazardous mateiials, iipd
hazardous waste handling procedures and requirements; local state and Uniform Fire Codes,
inclilding but not-limitéd to the Uniform Fire Code and the California Fire Code; and parts of the |
California Vehicle Code with respect to hazardous substances, hazardous materials, and | '
hazardous wasté.handling procedures and requirements. |

30..  Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereupon alleges that Defendants engaged
in conduct or failed to agf in a manner that violated provisions of the statutory and legal
fequirements identified in Paragraph 29, including but not limited to the following:

a Operate facilities in a mahnér to minimize the possibility ofa fire,

explosion or any unplanned sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste or hazardous waste
constituents to air, soil, or surface water which couid threaten human health or the envir_onment;

10
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' and manage, identify tlie dat(e of accumulation, and label containers of hazardous waste, in

accordance with Cahforma Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.34;

b. Label containers of hazardous waste before transporting or offenng

‘hazardous waste for transportation off-site at facilit_ies, in accordanoe with California Code of

Regulations, title 22, section 66262.31; |
c. Transfer custody of hazardous wastes to a transpoﬂer that holds a valid

registration 1ssued | by the DTSC; and, engaging in the transportation of hazardous waste at, to,

from and between facilities without a valid registration issued by the DTSC—, in violation of

California Health and Safety Code section 25163;
| d. Prepare hazardous waste matnifésts and retain manifests in acoordgnce '
Wlth Cahforma Code of Regulatlons, title 22, section 66260 ef seq.; -
e. Report to an admuustenng agency releases of hazardous matenals at
facilities in accordance with California Health and Safety Code sectlon_ 25507, subdivision (a);

f. Establish and implement business plans for its facilities, including training
m safety procedures in the event of a release, in accordance w1th the reqmrements of Callforma -

Health and Safety Code section 25504

g Maintain inventories of hazardous materials submit and certify a business
plan, or modify when necessary, for facilities in accordance with California Health and Safety

Code sections 25505, 25509, and 25510; .
-~ h. Have material safety data sheets for all regulated hazardous materials

réadily available on the premises in acbqrdance with California Fire Code s‘ectioﬁ_8001 6,and
have secondary containment for hazardous materials present at facilities in accordance with the
law; | . _ .- |
| i Comply with the requirements of the Uniform Fire Code as édopted by the
California Fire Code, sections 8001 et.seq., and numerous local ordinances in violation of
uniform and other ﬁré code provisions; . _

o Comply with the requirements of the California Labor Code and numeroué

regulations governing workplace safety standards in violation of Labor Code provisions.

11 _
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| k. - Comply with the requirements of numerous focal ordinanaes in violation
of California Business and Professxons Code section 17200 et seq.
31. Defendants’ noncomphance threatened public health and safety and the
environment, _
| FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Intentional and Negligent Violations of Hazardous Waste Control Laws
(California Health & Safety Code Sectlon 25189 and Implementmg Regulations)

32.  Plaintiff re‘allégcs and incorporates by r'eférence -as though set forth ih full herein,
the allegatlons contained in Paragraphs 1 tbrough 31, inclusive, of thls Complaint.

- 33, - Defendants are liable for civil penalties as set forth in California Health and
Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b), for each and every separate intentional violation and
for each and every neglig_eqt-violation of any provision of Chapter 6.5 of the California Haalfh
and Safety Code section 25100 et seq., and any applicable permit, rule, reguiation,_ standard, or
requirement issued or promulgated pﬁsumt thereto which occurred w1thm five years after the
dlscovery of the facts constituting grounds for commencmg the action on these clalms, excluswa
of any apphcable tolling periods and those set forth in Paragraph 23 herein.

34.  Each violation subj ects Defendants to a separate and addluonal penalty for each

-violation. Pursuant to section 25189 of the California Health and Safety Code, a separate civil

penalty must be imposed for each separate violation, and each penalty that must be imposed is
also separate and in addition to any other civil penalty imposed under this section and separate
and in addition to any other civil penalty imposed undér any other provision of law.

35.  Defendants must be immediately and permanently enjoined from further

-violations of Chapter 6.5.

_ SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
. Strict Liability Violations of Hazardous Waste Control Laws
(California Health & Safety Code Section 25189 2 and Implementing Regulations)
'36.  Plaintiff realleges Paragraphs 1 through 315, inclusive.
37.  Defendants are liable for civil penalties as set forth in California Health and
Safety Code _sectidxi 25189.2, subdivision (b), for each-and every separate violaﬁon_ of any
Complaint for Permanent Injunction, Civil Penalties, and Other Equitable Relief
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provision of Chapter 6.5 of the California Health and Safety Code and any applicable permit,
rule, regulation, standard, or requirement issued-or promulgated pursuant thereto which occﬁrrqd
within five years after the discdvcr-y of the facts constituting grounds for commencing the action,
exclusiyé of any appﬁqable tolling periods and those set forth in Paragraph 23 herein.

. 38.  Bach violation subjects Defendants toa separate and additional penalty for each
violation undér this cause of action, However, pursuant to section 251 8 9.2, subdivision (d), of
the California Health and Safety Code, no liability fof a civil penalty under section 25189.2 may
be imposed for the same act or failufe to act if a separate civil penalty is or has been imposed for
that violation pursuant to section 25189 of the C:_ilifoniia'Healﬂl and Safety Code.

39. - Defendants must be hnniédiatgly aﬁd'pennaﬂentl& -eﬁjoix_led from further violations

of Chapter 6.5.
THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

| (Violations of HWCL, Vehicle Codes, and Hazardous Waste Transportation Laws)
" 40. | Plaintiff realleges Paragraphs 1 through 39, inclusive.
41, Defendants are fiable for civil penalties as set forth in California Health and
Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b), for each and every separate intentional violatioﬁ of’
i'aws- relating to transbortation of hazardous waste, and for each and every negligent violation of
laws relating to transportation of hazardous waste, includiné. any provision of Chapter 6.5 of the -
California Health and Safety Code, section 25100 et seg., and any applicable permit, rule,

fegulation, standard, or requirement issued or promulgated pursuant thereto which occurred

within five years after the discovery of the facts coﬂstituting grounds for commencing the action

on these claims, exclusive of any applicable tolling pefiods and those set forth in Paragraph 23
herein. Defendants also are liable for separate and additic;nal civil penalties ‘as set forth in
applicable provisions of Divisions 14.1, 14.7, and 14,8 of the California Vehicle Code, section
32000 et séq.; for each énd every separate violation.

42.  Each violation subjects Defendants to a separate and additional penalty fo; each
violation. Pufsuanf to section 25.189 of the California Health and~Safety Code, a separate civil

penalty must be imposed for each separate violation; and each penalty that must be imposed is

13 —
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 also -separgte and in addition to any other civil penalty imposed under this section and separate

and in addition to any other civil penalty imposed under any other pfovisio'n of law.
43, - befendants must be hmnédiatel_y and pénnanently enjoined from further
violations of Chapter 6.5. | o | '
o FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Violations of Hazardous Materials Rglease Response Plans and Inventory_Laws)

44, Plamtlff rea]leges Paragraphs 1 through 43, inclusive.
45.  Defendants are liable for civil penalties as set forth in California Health and

‘Safety Code section 25514 for each and every separate violation of California Health and Safety

Code sections 25503 50 25505, inclusive, and sectlons 25508 to 25510,, 1nclu31ve and any

‘applicable permit, rule, regulation, standard, or requlrement issued or promulgated pursuant

thereto whlqh occurred within five years after the discovery of the facts constituting grounds for

| commencing the action on these claims, exclusive of any applicable tolling periods and those set

forth in Paragraph 23 herein.

46.  -As a consequence of Defendants’ violation of each of these sections, Defendants
are liable for 4 civil penalty that must be imposed-for each separate violation in an amount up to

$2,000.00 for each day in which the violation occurred, pursuént to California Health and Safety

 Code section 25514, subdivision (a). Where the violation resulted in or signiﬁcaxiﬂy contributes

to an emergency, Defendants also shall be liable for the full cost of the agency emergency
response as well as the cost of cleaning up and disposing of the hazardous material.

47.  As a consequence of Defendants’ knowing violation of any of these sections,

|| Defendants are liable for a civil penalty that must be imposed for each separate violation in an

amount up to $5,000.00 for each day in which the violation occurred, pursuant to California
Health and Safety Code section 25514, subdiviﬁon (). |

48. | Defendants must be immediately and_ permanently enjoined-from furfher
violations of Chapter 6.95. |
[
Iy
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- FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Violations of California Labor'Cod_e and Title 8 of the California Code of Regulaﬁons). |
49, Plaintiff realle;ges Paragréph 1 through 48, inclu‘sive.l
50. Pursuant to Califomi'a Labor Code section 6300 et seq. and solely with respect to
hazardous lﬁatenjals and hazardous waste ha_ndlihg proéedu_res and requirements, every employer
must furnish a place of employment that is safe and healthful for the employees, and niust furnish
appropriate safe devices, adopt safe practices and programs, and comply with regulation’s, '
requireinents, orders, special orderé, and workplace séfety standards, such as those édopted in
Title 8 of the-Califomia Code of Régulations. ' _ | |
51.  Defendants are liable for civil penalties, as set forth in California Labor Codé
secti'dn'6427 et seq. for each and every separate violation which bwurred within five years after
the discovery of the facts constituting grounds for commencing the action on these claims, |
exclusive of any applicable tolling periods and those set forth in Paragraph 23 herein. _'

52. Defcndénts must be inuﬁediately and permanently enjoined from further

adopted thereunder. | _
o SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION "
| (Violations of Unfair Compeﬁﬁbn Laws)

53.  Plaintiff realleges Paragraphs 1 through 52, inclusive.

54,  Pursuant to California Business and Pr_ofe_ssions Code section 17206, Defendants
are liable for civil penalties for each and every seﬁarate violation that accrued w1thm four yéars
of this Complaint, exclusive of any _apﬁlicable tolling periods and those set forth in Paragraph 23
herein. Defendants have en’gaged in unlawful acts, omissions, and practices that constitute unfair
competition within the meaning of Cai_lifomia Business and Professions Code section 17200 ez
seq., including bﬁt not limited to thé following: _

a.  The acts or omissions and practices alleged in the FIRST through FIFTH.
Causes of Action, above. | | |
11 - | .
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b. . The acts or omissions and practiees that constitute violations of Local,

‘State, and Uniform F ire Codes, ineludiﬂg the Califomia Fire Code and numerous local

ordinances in violation of umfonn and other fire code prowsmns

55. By the acts described herein, Defendants engaged in daily acts of unlawﬁ11 and/or
tmfair competition prohibited by California Business and Professions Code sections 17200-
17208. Each and every separate act constitutes an unlawful and/or unfair business practice.
Each day that Defendants engaged in each separate unlawful act, ‘omission or practice is a
separate and _distinct'violation of Business and Professions Code section 17200,

56. Defe'hdahts must be immediately and permanently enjoined, pursuant to .
California Btlsiness and Professions Code section 17203, from engagihg in activities that, as

alleged in this Coh1pla'int, violate Chaptersv6'.5 and 6.95 of Division 20 of the California Health

{| and Safety Code and implementing regulations, the Vehicle Code, the Uniform Fire Code as .
-adopted by the California Fire Code and implementing regulations and local and mummpal

ordmances governing fire safety reqmrements Labor Code section 6300 et seq. and
implementing regulations, and other local ordinances, and which thereby. constitute unfair

competition within the meaning of California Business and Professions Code section 17200.

| WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFF PRAYS FOR THE FOLLOWING RELIEFR

L. A Permanent Injunction requiring Defendants to comply with those provisions of
California Health and Safety Code, Division 20, Chapter 6.5 and implementing regulatlons
which Defendants are alleged to have violated;

2. A Permanent Injunction requiring Defendants to comply with those provisions of

California Health and Safety Code, Division 20 Chapter 6.95 and 1mp1ernentmg regulations,

which Defendants are alleged to have violated;

3. A Permanent Injunction prohibiting Defendants from vioié.ting California Labor

Code section 6300 et seq. and implementing regulations, which Defendants are alleged to have |

ﬁola.ted;
4, A Permanent Injunction, issued pursuant to California Business and Professions
Code section 17203, prohibiting Defendants from engaging in activity that violates the provisions

Complaint for Permanent Injunction, Civil Penalties, and Other Equitable Relief




C - C
1 '(J).f Chapters 6.5 and 6,95 of '_DiViéion 20 of the California Health aﬁd Safety Code, the Uniform
2 |f Fire C(;de as adopted by the California Fire Code, and Labor Code section 6300 et seq.,.as (
3 allegcd in this complaint which thereby oonstltute unfair competition within the meamng of
4 Cahfomla Business and Professions Code section 17200, ’
5 S Civil penalties acc‘(;&-t;lg to proof against Defendants pursuant to Cahfonua
6 || Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b), in an amount according to proof; |
7 . 6.  Civil penalties according to proof agaiﬁst’Defendaﬁts'pursuant to California
8 || Health and Safety Code section 25189 2, subdivision (b), in an amount accordmg to proof;
9 7. Civil penalties according to proof agamst Defendants pursuant to Cahfonua
10 || Health and Safety Code section 25514, in an amount according to proof;
11 _' | 8. Civil penalﬁés- according to proof against Defendants pursuant to Califbmig
12 )i Business and Pfofessions Code section 17206 for each aét of unfair competition e_ng,aged_ inby
13 || Defendants in an amount according to proof;
14 9. | Grant the Plaintiff its cost of inspection, inx}esﬁgation, attorneys ‘fees,' )
15 || enforcement, .prosecution, and suit, herein, including but not limited to such costs as are
16 || authiorized for rehhbl_lrsem_ent pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 1021 8, and,

17 10.  Grant such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

- 18| RESPECTFULLY REQUESTED:

19 :
20 i Dated: 8 - , 3 . 'O:} EDMUND G. BROWN JR,, Attorney General
, : - of the State of California
21 : TOM GREENE
: - o Chief Assistant Attorney General
22 '~ THEODORA P, BERGER
. . Senior Assistant Attorney Gerieral
23 KEN ALEX _
' _ Supervising Deputy Attorney General
24 -
” - m }) Wm@
26 :
- BRETTJ. MORRIS
27 - .Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Plaintiff
28 ' People of the State of California
17
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ROCKARD 7, DELGADILLO _
g Cjty of Los Angeles

STEVE COOLEY '
District Attorney of the County of Los Angeles
ST ILEY P. WILLIAMS .

Deputy Dns'tnct Attbrney

" DANIELJ. WRIGHT
Deputy District Attorney

DEAN D. FLIPPO

District Attorney of the County of Monterey
MATT BOGOSHIAN

Deputy District Attorney

MATI‘ BOGOSHIAN
Deputy District Attorney

ROD PACHECO E
District Attorney of the County of Riverside
DBENA M. BENNETT -
SupervisingDeputy District Attorney
STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN

Deputy District Attorney

STEPHANIE B, WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

18
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ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO,
City Attorney of the City of Los Angeles

ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO
City Attorney

STEVE COOLEY

District Attorney of the County of Los Angcles
STANLEY P. WILLIAMS

Assistant Head Deputy District Attorney
DANIEL J. WRIGHT .

Deputy District Attorney

DEAN D, FLIPPO _
District Attorney of the County of Monterey

MATT BOGOSHIAN
Deputy District Attorney
179
18
19 R
' , _ . MATT BOGOSHIAN
20 : _ - Deputy District Attorney
21 - ..
ROD PACHECO . ,
22 ' District Attorney of the County of Riverside
' , DEENA M BENNETT ‘
23 S - Supervising Deputy District Attomey
: - . STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN -
24 ) Deputy District Attorney
25 '
26
27 _ :
: , STEPHANIE B, WEISSMAN
28 : Deputy District Attorney
_ 18
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ROCKARD J, DELGADILLO;
City Attorney of the-City of Los Angeles

ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO

. City Attorney

STEVE COOLEY : '
District Attomey of the County of Los Angeles
STANLEY P. WILLIAMS

Assistant Head Deputy District Attomey
DANIEL J. WRIGHT

Deputy District Attorney

DANIEL J. WRIGHT

Deputy District Attorney |

DEAN D. FLIPPO

District Attorney of the County of Montercy
MATT BOGOSHIAN

Deputy District Attomney

Deputy District Attorng}

ROD PACHECO

District Attorney of the County of Riverside
DEENA M. BENNETT

Supervising Deputy District Attorney
STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN

Deputy District Attorney

STEPHANIE B, WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

18
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'ROCKARD J, DELGADILLO,

«

City Attorney of the City of Los Angeles

'ROCKARDT. DELGADILLO

City Attorney

STEVE COOLEY

Distriet Attorney of the County of Los Angeles
STANLEY P. WILLIAMS'

Assistant Head Deputy District Attomey
DANIEL J. WRIGHT

Deputy District Attorney

 DANIEL J. WRIGHT

Deputy District Attorney

DEAN D, FLIPPO '

District Attorney of the County.of Monterey
MATT BOGOSHIAN

Deputy District Attorney

MATT BOGOSHIAN
Deputy District Attorney

ROD PACHECO

District Attorney of the County of Riverside
DEENA M. BENNETT

Supetvising Deputy District Attorney
STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN

Deputy District Attorney

ey

(pltpie 8- Uhivomte~_
STEPHANIK B, WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

18
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11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

'28ﬁ_

JAMES P WILLETT
‘District Attorney of the County of San Joaqum

DAVID J. IREY
. Supervising Deputy District Attomey .

DOLORES A. CARR

District Attorney of the County of Santa Clara
JOHN FIORETTA

Deputy District Attorney

JOHN FIORETTA
Deputy District Attorney

19
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'JAMBS P. WILLETT

District Attorney of the County of San Joaqum
DAVID J. IREY .
Supervising Deputy District Attorney

DAVIDJ. lREY
Supervising Deputy District Attorney

DOLORES A. CARR

District Attomey of the County of Santa Clara -
JOHN FIORETTA

'Deputy District Attorney

Depﬁty District Attorriey

19
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3363 cé'nj Boulevard

Exhlblt A-To Complaint for Permanent Injunction, Civil Penalties and Other Equltable Rellef
In People v, Home Depot U.S.A., Inc. .
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EXHIBIT A

600 S Harbor Boulevard

Exhlblt A - To Complaint for Permanent Injunction, Clvll Penaltles and Other Equitable Rellef
In People v. Home Depot U.S.A,, Inc.
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EXHIBIT A

ADDRESS

ElToro Road.

750 Bodr véLé&'Road

Exhiblt A - To Complaint for Permanent Injunction, Civil Penalties and Other Equltable Relief
in People v. Home Depot U.S. A., Inc.



o . EXHBITA

_ADDRESS I R

Exhibit A - To Complalnt for Permanent Injunction, Civil Penalties and Other Equitable Rellef
in Peopleyv. Hor_ne Depot U.S.A,, Inc.



EXHIBIT A

DGR

Ti310 it

13907 San Pablo Avenue

Exhibit A - To Complaint for Permanent injunction, Clvil Penalties and Other Equitable Relief
In People v. Home Depot U.S.A., Inc.
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EXHIBIT A

Exhibit A - To Complaint for Permanent injunction, Civil Penalties and Other Equitable Rellef
In People v. Home Depot U.S.A,, Inc.



. EXHIBITA

Exhibit A - To Complaint for Permanent lnjunctlon, Civil Penalties and Other Equitable Relief
in People v. Home Depot U.S:A,, Inc.
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lenue go ari Dieg

Exhibit A - To Complaint for Pefmanenf Injuncthn, Civil Penaltles and Other Equitable Relief
. In People v. Home Depot U.S.A., Inc.



EXHIBIT A

Exhibit A - To Complaint for Permanent Injunction, Civil Penalties and Other Equitable Rellef
in Peaple v. Home Depot U S.A., Inc.
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EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Attorney General
of the State of California
TOM GREENE
Chief Assistant Attorney General
THEODORA P. BERGER
Senior Assistant Attorney General
KEN ALEX
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
BRETT J. MORRIS, SBN 158408
Deputy Attorney General
1515 Clay Street
P. O. Box 70550
Oakland, CA 94612-0550
Telephone: (510) 622-2176
Fax: (510) 622-2270

Attorneys for Plaintiff,
People of the State of California

[Exempt from fees pursuant to
Government Code Section 6103]

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
Plaintiff,

V.

HOME DEPOT U.S.A., Inc., a Delaware
Corporation, and DOES 1 through 99,

Defendants.

Case No.. BC376095

AMENDMENT TO THE
STIPULATION FOR ENTRY
OF FINAL JUDGMENT .

WHEREAS, the People of the State of California (hereinafter, “the People”) and

Home Depot U.S.A., Inc. (hereinafter “Settling Defendant™), filed a Stipulation for Entry

of Final Judgment on August 17, 2007, which provided for filing under seal a copy of

Settling Defendant’s HHM III Program, to be attached as Exhibit G to the Permanent

Injunction and Final Judgment.

WHEREAS, on August 17, 2007, Settling Defendant filed a Motion to File Under

Seal Exhibit G.

Amendment to the Stipulation for Entry of Final Judgment




O 00 I & i A W N o~

RN NN NN NN = : :
® A A G R OO NS 0 o arrnS =

WHEREAS, on August 29, 2007, the Court issued a minute order denying without
prejudice Settling Defendant’s Motion to File Under Seal Exhibit G.

- WHEREAS, in response to the Court’-s recommendation in its August 29™ minute
order, the parties agreed to continue the plaintiff’s Motion for Entry of Permanent
Injunction and Final Judgment and reset the hearjng on the motion for October 4, 2007.

WHEREAS; the People and Settling Defendant agree to eliminate Exhibit G as an
exhibit to the Final Judgment from the proposed Permanent Injunction and Final
Judgment so that the parties are no longer requesting that any portion of the Final
Judgment be filed under seal. '

WHEREAS, Settling Defendant expended significant resources in developing the
HHM IIT Program and considers the HHM III Programlto be a confidential, proprietary

business document. -

Now, therefore, the parties hereby agree and stlpulate as follows:

17 Paragraph 6.2 of the Stipulation For Entry of Final Judgment filed on
August 17, 2007 is hereby amended to delete the phrase “Settling Defendant shall submit_
a certification to the People that an HHM III Progfam, or an equivalent program to that
attached as Exhibit G to the Final Judgment (filed under seal),” from page 7, lines 3-4,
and in its place insert the phrase “Settling Defendant shall submit a certification to t-h¢
People that an HHM III Program, or an equivalent program to that produced by Settling
Defendant on September 18, 2007, to each of the undersigned offices acting on behalf of
the People”.

2. The parties agree to revise Paragraph 3.2 of the Perménent Iﬁjuncﬁon and
Final Judgfnent; Order [Proposed] to delete the phrase “Home Depot shall submit a
certification to the People that an HHM III Program, or an equivalent program to that
attached as Exhibit G to the Final Judgment (filed under seal),” from page 4, lines 21-22,
and in its place insert the phrase “Home Depot shall submit a certification to the People

that an HHM III Program, or an equivalent program to that produced by Settling
2
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Defendant on September 18, 2007, to each of the undersigned offices acting on behalf of

the People™.

3. Paragraph 6.7.a of the Stipulation For Entry of Final Judgment filed on
August 17, 2007 is hereby amended to delete the phrase “adopt and begin to administer
the interim Fire Code Program at all Covered Facilities that are not ‘Home Depot’
branded retail stores by September 15, 2007,” from page 8, line 28 through page 9, line 1,
and in its place insert the phrase “adopt and begin to administer the interim Fire Code
Program at all Covered Facilities that are not ‘Home Depot’ branded retail stores priér to
entry of the Final Judgment by the Court.”

4. The parties agree to revise Paragraph 3.7.a of the Permanent Injunction and
Final Judgment; Order [Proposed] filed on August 17, 2007 to delete the phrase “adopt
and begin to administer the intérim Fire Code Program at all Covered Facilities that are
not ‘Home Depot’ branded retail stores by September 15,-2007,” from page 6, lines 17-18,
and in its place insert the phrase “adopt and begin to administer the interim F iré Code
Program at all Covered Facilities that are not ‘Home Depot’ branded retail stores prior to

entry of the Final Judgment by the Court.”

IT IS SO STIPULATED.
FOR THE PLAINTIFF:
Dated: ?" /§-07 EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Attorney General
of the State of California :
TOM GREENE

Chief Assistant Attorney General
THEODORA P. BERGER

Senior Assistant Attorney General
KEN ALEX

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

BRETT J. MORRIS
Deputy Attorney General

Attorneys for Plaintiff
People of the State of California

3 ~
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Dated: WM’% 0 zoo 7
[ - 7

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

C

ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO, City Attorney
of the City of Los Angeles
PATTY BILGIN,

Supjr/vi?'g orney

PATTY BILGIN
Supervising Attorny

STEVE COOLEY, District Attorney
of the County of Los Angeles
DANIEL J. WRIGHT

Deputy District Attorney

- DANIEL J. WRIGHT

Deputy District Attorney

DEAN D. FLIPPO, District Attorney
of the County -of Monterey
STEVEN G. HOLETT

Deputy District Attorney

STEVEN HOLETT
Deputy District Attorney

ROD PACHECO, District Attorney
of the County of Riverside

DEENA M. BENNETT _
Supervising Deputy District Attorney
STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

JAMES P. WILLETT, District AttSrney

of the County of San Joaquin
DAVID J. IREY '
Supervising Deputy District Attorney

DAVID J. IREY
Supervising Deputy District Attorney

4
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Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

11407

.

- ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO, City Attorney

of the City of Los Angeles
PATTY BILGIN,
Supervising Attorney

PATTY BILGIN
Supervising Attorney

i

STEVE COOLEY, District-Attorney
of the County of Los Angeles
DANIEL J. WRIGHT

Deputy District Attorney

Ll [ Wi

DANIEL J. GHT ¢
Deputy Distfict Attorney

DEAN D. FLIPPO, District Attorney
of the County of Monterey

STEVEN G. HOLETT

Deputy District Attorney

STEVEN HOLETT
Deputy District Attorney

ROD PACHECO, District Attorney
of the County of Riverside
DEENA M. BENNETT
Supervising Deputy District Attorney
STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

JAMES P. WILLETT, District Attorney
of the County of San Joaquin
DAVID J. IREY

Supervising Deputy District Attorney

DAVID J.IREY
Supervising Deputy District Attorney

4
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Dated:
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Dated:

Dated: C? - /2/“ ®7

Dated:

Dated:

ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO, City Attorney
of the City of Los Angeles

PATTY BILGIN,

Supervising Attorney

PATTY BILGIN
Supervising Attorney

STEVE COOLEY, District Attorney
of the County of Los Angeles
DANIEL J. WRIGHT

Deputy District Attorney

DANIEL J. WRIGHT
Deputy District Attorney

DEAN D. FLIPPO, District Attorney
of the Coynt c())f I{\}/_E[ont 29

Deputy District Attorney

ROD PACHECO, District Attorney
of the County of Riverside
DEENA M. BENNETT
Supervising Deputy District Attomey
STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

JAMES P. WILLETT, District Attorney
of the County of San Joaqum

DAVID J. IREY
Supervising Deputy District Attorney

DAVID J. IREY o
Supervising Deputy District Attorney
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Dated;

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

N

ﬁ/{f{/ﬁ?

ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO, City Attorney
of the City of Los Angeles .

PATTY BILGIN,

Supervising Attorney

PATTY BILGIN
Supervising Attorney

STEVE COOLEY, District Attorney
of the County of Los Angeles
DANIEL J. WRIGHT

Deputy District Attorney

DANIEL J. WRIGHT
Deputy District Attorney

DEAN D. FLIPPO, District Attorney
of the County of Monterey
STEVEN G. HOLETT

Deputy District Attorney

STEVEN HOLETT:
Deputy District Attorney

ROD PACHECO, District Attorney
of the County of Riverside

DEENA M. BENNETT .

Supervising Deputy District Attorney
STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

124 Wby
STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

JAMES P. WILLETT, District Attorney
of the County of San Joaquin

DAVID J. IREY

Supervising Deputy District Attorney

DAVID J. IREY -
Supervising Deputy District Attorne

4
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Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

'Dated:

7/18/07

ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO, City Attorney
of the City of Los Angeles
PATTY BILGIN,

Supervising Attorney

PATTY BILGIN -
Supervising Attorney

STEVE COOLEY, District Attorney
of the County of Los Angeles
DANIEL J. WRIGHT

Deputy District Attorney

DANIEL J. WRIGHT
Deputy District Attorney

DEAN D. FLIPPO, District Attorney
of the County of Monterey
STEVEN G. HOLETT

Deputy District Attorney

STEVEN HOLETT
Deputy District Attorney

ROD PACHECO, District Attorney
of the County of Riverside
DEENA M. BENNETT
Supervising Deputy District Attorney
STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

STEPHANIE B. WEISSMAN
Deputy District Attorney

JAMES P. WILLETT, District Attorney
of the County of San Joaquin

XD J.IREY |
upervising Deputy District Attorney

4
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.|| Dated: DOLORES A. CARR, District Attorney
2 ' of the County of Santa Clara
' JOHN FIORETTA
3 Deputy District Attorney
4 Feritly
5 J FIORETTA
Deputy District Attorney
6 B
FOR THE SETTLING DEFENDANT:
7
8 | Dated:
James Snyder
9 Vice President - Legal and Regulatory Affairs
The Home Depot U.S.A., Inc.
10 |
11
Approved as to Form:
12
13 | Dated: O’MELVENY & MYERS, LLP
By: James R. Asperger -
14
15
Attorneys for Defendant
16 The Home Depot U.S.A ., Inc.
17
18
19
20
21
22"
o
24
25-
26
27
28
5
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1
| Datea: DOLORES A. CARR, District Attorney
2 ' of the County of Santa Clara
JOHN FIORETTA
3 Deputy District Attorncy
o
5 JOHN FIORETTA
Deputy District Attorney
6
FOR THE SETTLING DEFENDANT:.
My £/0
8 | Dated: 4/2,0/07 me
! f _ James§)Snyder
9 Vict President - Legal and Regu!atary Aftairs
The Home Depot UL S A., Inc,
10
11
Approved as to Form:
12
i3 [ Datea:__DVE /07 O°MELVENY & MYERS, LLP
T By: James R, Asperger
14
5 W %«——*ﬂ
_ At for k
16 Th H he . Ine.
17
18
19
20 )
21
22
23
24
23
26
27
28
' . 5
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E.( JBIT B (Disbursement of Ci\ﬁ. .)en‘a'lties)

Attorney General, District Business and . | Health and Safety :
Attorney or Clty Attorney Office |Professions Code [Code § 25515.2 Total of Penalty
Receiving Civil Penalties § 17200 Penalties - [Penalties Payments
Alameda $ 30,000,00 | $ . 30,000.00 | $ 60,000.00
Attorney General* $ 731,000,00 | $ 83,000.00 | § 814,000.00
Contra Costa $ 10,000.00 | $ 10,000.00 | § 20,000.00,
Fresno $ 10,000.00 | $ 10,000.00 | § 20,000.00
Imperial $ 5,000.00 | § 5,000.00 | $ 10,000.00
Kern $ 10,000.00 | $ 10,000.00.( $ 20,000.00
Los Angeles $ 731,000.00 | $ 83,000.00 | $ 814,000.00
Los Angeles City $ 731,000:00 | $ 83,000.00 | $ 814,000.00
Matin $ $ 500000 | § ™ 10,000.00
Monterey $ $ 83,000.00 [ $ 814,000.00
Napa $ $ 5,000.00 | $ 10,000.00
Orange $ 5,000.00 | $ 25,000.00 | § 40,000.00(
Placer $ 5,000,00 | $ 5,000.00 | $ 10,000.00
Riverside $ 731,000.00 | $ 83,000.00 | $ 814,000.00
Sacramento 1§ 10,000.00 | $ 10,000.00 | $ 20,000.00
San Bernardino .$ 25,000.00 | $ 35,000.00 | $ 60,000.00
San Diego $ 25,000.00 | $ 35,000.00 [ $ 60,000.00
San Joaquin $ 731,000.00 | § 83,000.00 | $ 814,000,00
San Luis Obispo $ 5,000.00 | $ - 500000 $ . 10,000.00
" San Mateo $ 10,000.00 | $ 10,000,00 | § 20,000.00
Santa Barbara $ §,000.00 | $ 500000 | $ 10,000.00
Santa Clara $ 731,000.00 | $ 83,000.00 | $ 814,000.00
Santa Cruz $ 5,000.00 | § 5,000.00 | $ 10,000.00
Solano $ 5,000.00 | $ 5,000.00 [ $ 10,000,00
* Sonoma $ 5,000,00 | $ 5,000.00| $ 10,000.00
Tehama $ 200,000.00 | $ - 33,000.00 | $ 233,000.00
Tulare $ 5,000.00 | $ 5,000.00 | $ 10,000.00
- Ventura $ 15,000.00 | $ 15,000,00 | $ 30,000.00
Yolo $ 5,000.00 | $ 5,000.00 | $ 10,000.00
$ 5,532,000.00 | $ 859,000.00 | $ 6,391,000.00
These penalty splits are made pursuant
to B&P Code §17206, Gov. Code 26506
and H&S Code §25515.2
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Regulatory/Law Enforcement
Agencies Receiving Civil
Penalties '

90,000.00

Califorpia Highway Pa_trol $ 90,000.00 | $
Department of Toxic Substances . _
: ] Control $ 250,000,00 | $ 250,000.00
Los Angles City Fire $ 25,000.00 | $ 25,000.00
Los Angeles County Fire $ 250,000.00 | $ 250,000.00
Monterey County.CUPA $ 16,000.00 | $ 16,000.00
Riverside County CUPA $ 57,750.00 | $ 57,750.00
San Bernardino CUPA $ 15,000.00 | $ 15,000.00
San Joaquin County Environmental ' )
Health Department $ 31,250.00 | $ 31,250.00
C!fy of San Jose Fire Department $ 100,000.00 | $ 100,000.00
Ventura County CUPA. $ 4,000.00 | $ 4,000.00
San Luls Obispo County CUPA $ 4,000.00 | $ 4,000.00
Sonoma County CUPA $ 4,000.00 | $ -4,000.00
Orange County CUPA $ 4,000.00 ( $ 4,000.00
Sacramento County CUPA $ 4,000.00 | $ 4,000.00
.Anaheim Fire Department $ 4,000.00 | $ 4,000.00
$ 859,000.00 | $ 859,000.00
$ 7,250,000.00

These penalty éplits are made pursuant
to B&P Code §17206, Gov. Code 26506
and H&S Code §25515.2
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* All of the Attorney General civil penalties assessed in this matter shall be made payable to
The Department of Justice - Litigation Deposit Fund. The monies shall be administered by the
California Department of Justice, which shall be used by the Environment Section of the. Public
Rights Division of the Attorney General's Office, until all funds are exhausted, for any of the
following purposes: (I) implementation of the Attorney General’s authority to protect the
environment and natural resources of the State pursuant to Government Code section 12600 et seq.
and as Chief Law Officer of the State of California pursuant to Article V, section 13 of the California
Constitution; (2) enforcement of laws related to the preservation and protection of air quality,
including, but not limited to, Part 4, Chapter 4, Division 26 of the California Health and Safety Code; '
(3) enforcement of the Unfair Competition Law, Business and Professions Code section 17200, et
seq., as it relates to protection of the environment and natural resources of the State; and (4) other
" environmental actions which benefit the State of California and its citizens as determined by the
Attorney General. Such funding may be used for the costs of the Attorney General’s investigation,
filing fees and other court costs, payment to expert witnesses and technical consultants, purchase of
equipment, laboratory analyses, personnel costs, travel costs, and other costs necessary to pursue
environmental actions investigated or initiated by the Attorney General for the benefit of the State of
California and its citizens. The payment, and any interest derived therefrom shall solely and
exclusively augment the budget of the Attorney General’s Office as it pertains to the Environment
Section of the Public Rights Division and in no manner shall supplant or cause any rcductlon of any

portion of the Attorney General’s budget.
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(- EXHIBITC (Costs) C
Alame&a County District Attorney 9,500.00
Attorney General ' 302,000.00
Contra Costa County District Attorney 2,50000

Los Angeles City Attorney

Los Angéles Cotinty District Attorney

Monterey County District Attorney

Napa County District Aftorney

Orange County Distri¢t Attorney

Riverside County District Attorney

Sacramento County District Attorney

San Bernardino Gounty District Attorney

San Diego County District Attorney

|san Joaquin County District Attorney

San Luls Obispo County District Attorney

Santa Glara County District Attorney

Santa Cruz County District Attorney

Sonoma County Disfrict Aftorney

Tehama County District Attorney for CDAA Circuit Prosecutor

Ventura County District Attorney

Anahelin Fire Department|

-.vyﬂ’(ﬁ‘#%%?iﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂ(ﬂﬁa MG%M@*QQ“”MM%%#Q*«Q%

Butte County CUPA
California Environmental Protection Agency] ,000.0
California Highway Patrol .9,000.00
Department of Toxic Substances Control
Kern County CUPA
Kings County CUP.
Los Angeles County Fir
- Los Angles City Fire|
~ Montérey County Health Depaiiment - CUPA
Orange County. CUPA
Riverside County CUP.
Sacramento County CUPA
Salinas Fire Department| $
San Bernardino CUPA| §
_ . San Diego CUPA| $ X
San Joaquin County Environmental Heaith Department (CUPA) $ . 11,400.00
San Joaquin County Officé of Emergency Services| $ 1,400.00
City of San Jose Fire Department| $ 21,000.00
San Luis Obispo CUPA| § 2,000.00
Santa Clara County Department of Environmental Health (CUPA)] $ 8,100.00
_ Seaslde Fire Department| $ 1,000.00
Sonoma County GUPA[ $ 1,500.00
Stanislaus County CUPA| $ 500.00
Sunnyvale Department of Public Safety (CUPA) $ 400.00
' Sutter County CUPA| $ 100.00
Ventura County CUPA| $ 1,200.00
Ventura County Oxnard Fire| $ 1,000.00
$ 1,300,000.00
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EXHIBIT D (Suppleméntal.Environmental.Pr‘o_jec.ts)

1. Environmentil Protection Prosecution Fund. One-MillionDollars ($1,000,000,00) to
~ be -use‘d by the -Craig Thotmpson: Environmental Protection Prosecution’ Fund (“EPPF
Fund”). The payrient-made shall-be placed in an interést-bearing Special Deposit Find
established by the Ealifornid Attorney General. Such: fufids shall be available for use in
environmental enforcemiént actions t6 benéfit the State of Califorriia and its citizens. This
Fund shall be organized solely -and eéxélusively for the purpose of éﬁhe‘incing ‘the
~ investigation, prosectition, and enforcement of environmental protection actions brought
puisuaﬁt-to the enviroiiméntal protection statites of the State of Califoinia (fncluding bt
riot:limited to Chaptér2-of Division‘6 of'the Fish & Game Code, Chapters 6.5, 6.7, 6.95 of
Division 20 of the Health & Safety Codé, and Division 7 of the Water Code as ameénded
from‘_ time to time) by the California Attorney Geneﬂ, district attorneys and such city
attorneys as are authorized to bring such actions pursuant to those statutes (“eligible city
‘attorneys”). The money transferred into the Special .DepositlFund' and any interest derived
therefrom shall not be considered part of the budget of the Attorney General ’s Office and in
no manner shall supplant or cause any reduction of any portion of the Attorney General’s
~ budget.
2, Environmental Training Programs. Three Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars
~ ($350,000.00) payable to the California District Attorneys Association Environmental
Project for the purposes of providing training consistent with the purposes of that project.
a. Requirements Pertaining to Environmental Training Program: The
payments made pursuant to this section shall be used by the designated organization, upon
acceptance, to design and to provide training to the California environmental enforcement -
community related primarily to multi-media/multi-juﬁsdictional enforcement courses with
emphasis on courses related to enforcement actions taken by regulators utilizing local
prosecutors or the Attorney General’s Office. Such training shall take place, to the éxtCI/lt
reasonably possible, w1thm four years following entry of the Consent Judgment. The
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EXHIBIT E (Additional Environmental Training Programs)

1. California CUPA Forum Board. THD shall provide Three Hundred and Seventy

Five (375) full scholarships each year for the next four (4) years for the annual CUPA

Conference. Each of these scholarships shall cover conference registration, travel, food,
.lodging and incidentals. - o

2. Cal\EPA _erss Media Enforcement Sympo.sium. THD shall provide Sixty (60)
full scholarships each year for the next four (4) years for the annual Cal\EPA Cross Media
Enforcement Symposium. Each of these scholarships shall cover conference registration,

travel, food, lodging and incidentals.

3. California Hazardous Materials Investigators Association (CHMIA), THD shall
provide One Hundred and Fifty (150) tuition only scholarships each year for the next five
(5) years for the annual CHMIA Conference.

4, Western States Project, THD shall provide Seventy (70) full scholarships each
year for the next four (4) years to their annual trainings. Each of these scholarships shall

cover conference registration, travel, food, lodging and incidentals.

5. ' California Advanced Environmental Criminal Training Program (Cal-AECTP)
in conjunction with the California Hazardous Material Investigators Association
(CHMIA). THD shall provide Twenty Four (24) full scholarships each year for the next
four (4) years for this training. Each of these scholarships shall cover conference

, regisﬁaﬁon, travel, food, lodging and incidentals. '

6. California Specialized Training Institute — Environmental Crimes Course.

THD shall provide Twenty Four (24) full scholarships each year for the next four (4) years

Exhibit E ~ To Permanent Injunction and Final Judgment in People v. Home Depot U.S.A., Inc.
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for this training. Bach of these scholarships shall cover conference registraﬁon, travel, food,

lodging and incidentals.
*If the payment is accepted by a designated entity, it shall provide annual letter reports,

describing the specific use of the funds and the type of training provided. The reports shall
be submitted to the Plaintiff’s representatives named in this Judgment. '
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Exhibit F ‘
The Home Depot Additional Enirironmental Commitments -

The Home Depot shall adopt and implement the following environmental
- programs; _
| A. " Upon entry of the Final Judgment and within the next five years, The
| Home Depot shall undertake all reasonab.le steps to build five (5) new “LEED Green”
stores in the State of California. The Leadership in Energy and Enviroﬁmental Design
(LEED) Green Building Rating Systemﬁf is the nationally accépted benchmark for the .
design, construction, and operatibn of high performance green buildings. LEED
promotes a whole-building approach to sustainability by recognizing performance in five
key areas of human and environmental health: sustainable site development, water
savings, energy efficiency, materials selection, and indoor environmental quality. In the
event that Home Depot is unable to construct the five LEED stores in California or is
u'nable to obtain LEED certification due to planning commission or other third party
constraints, the parties will meet and confer to agree upon an alternative program of
comparable scope and cost. In the event that the parties cannot feach agreement the

. matter shall be submitted to the Court. |

" .B. - Within four (4) months of entry of the Final Judgment, Home Depot
will design and roll out an “Eco-Friendly Virtual Home Tour” (“HOmg Tour”) asa |

' supplemént to the current virtual home tour currently presented on www.hpmedepot.com.
This virtual tour shall highlight the eco-options product§ that are aVailable:for use
throﬂghout the ho_me and prdvide specific information (as applicable) about each
‘product’s energy savings potential, impfoved performance ability, water conservation
_rate as well as how it can contribute to cleaner air and a healthier home. The eco-friendly
component of the Home Tour shall remain in effect for five years from the entry of the '
Final Judgment. Home Depot will modify the home tour at least twice during the
duration of the injunction.
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C.  During each of three years of the term of the injunction and

beginning after éntry of the Final Judgment, Home Depot shall dedicate at least 85 ﬁages .

" per year of its advertising catalogues' distributed in California to green products. Green

products include products that have less of an impact on the environment thz_in competing‘
products. The advertisemghts shall include eco-options and/or United States
Environmental Protection Agency Energy Star products: ,

D Withinsix (6) months of entry of the Final Judgment, Home Depot
will create a “Green Energy” roadmap that that similar to Item B above, that shall
specifically identify areas in each home in which upgrades such as energy efficient

appliances can be installed or areas in which eco-friendly broducts can be ﬁsed. . The

format will be based on the roadmap that was developed several years ago, a copy of

which is attached as Exhibit F-1 hereto. For three years and after entry of the Final
Judgment, Home Depot shall distn'_bute 1.6 million copies of the roadmap at its retail
autlets throughout California. ’ - .

E.  Within three (3) months of entry of the Final Judgment, Home
Depot shall engage in a process of identifying and, as appropriate, advertising additional
eco-options prdducfs beyond those that are aﬁeady sold by Home Depot in California.
The categories of eco-options products to be considered shall include: energy efficiency,
clean water, clean air, sustainable forestry and/or waste reduction, and may-include
reduced toxicity. Within three (3) months of entry of the Final Judgment, Home Depot
shall also reconfigure its stores in California, to the gréatest extent practicable, so that the
eco-options products shall be merchandised next to comparable products and signs shall
be added to attract consumers to these environmerital options. The Home Depot will
maintain this program for five years after entry of the Final Judgment,

F. The Home Depot shall submit annual status reports to the People on |
July 1* of each year, from July 1, 2008 through July 1, 2012, for each program listed ip
paragraphs A-E above, | | ' k
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EXHIBIT G INTENTIONALLY OMITTED
(DELETED FROM PRIOR VERSION)






Exhibit K

The Following are the Relevant Sections of the California Fire Code:

L.

2.

California Fire Code § 8001 .14,3.3: storage height of hazardous materials

California Fire Code § 7902.5.10.2.4 (4): storage helght of ﬂammable and combustible
liquids and in rack sprinkler coverage

California Fire Code § 7902.5.10.2.4 (1): combustible commodxtles stored above
flammable or combustible liquids -

California Fire Code § 8001.11.8: separation of incompatible materials

 California Fire Code § 8001.3.3: hazardous material inventory statement

California Fire Code §§'7902.5.7.1_, 8001,14.2 & 8212.9: aggregéte quantities of
hazardous materials, flammable and combustible liquids, and liquefied petrolenm gases

California Fire, Code §8212.4: storage of portable containers -of _liqueﬁed petroleum gas

California Fire Code §7902.5.10.2.4 (2): storage of flammable and combustible hqulds

on metal shelving

Magd v
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DECLARATION OF-SERVICE BY OVERNIGHT COURIER

Case Name: THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
v. HOME DEPOT U.S.A., et al.

Case No.: Los Angeles County Superior Court, Case No, BC376095

I. declare:

I am employed in the Office of the Attorney General, which is the office of a member of the Bar
of this Court at which member's direction this service is made. I am familiar with the business
practice at the Office of the Attorney General for collection and processing of cotrespondence for
mailing with the United States Postal Service. In accordance with that practice, correspondence
placed in the internal mail collection system at the Office of the Attorney General is deposited
with the United States Postal Service that same day in the ordinary course of business.

On September 24, 2007, I served the attached

PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND FINAL JUDGMENT; ORDER
[PROPOSED] (Version Revised 9/07)

by placing a true copy thereof in the internal mail collection system at the Office of the Attorney
General at P.O. Box 70550, Oakland, CA 94612-0550, for deposit with our contractor, Golden
State Overnight, in a sealed envelope for next business-day delivery, addressed as follows:

SEE ATTACHED SERVICE LIST

I declare under penalty of perjury fhe foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration was
executed on September 24, 2007 at Oakland, California.

.DEBRA BALDWIN | | M@ ﬂ«éf%/u

Signature




SERVICE LIST

Case Name: THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

v. HOME DEPOT U.S.A., et al.

Case No.: Los Angeles County Superior Court, Case No. BC376095

Matthew K. Bogoshian

DA Monterey County

1200 Aguajito Road, Room 301
‘Monterey, CA 93940
Telephone:  (831) 755-5070
Facsimiles:  (831) 755-5068

David J. Irey
DA San Joaquin County
~ Environmental Prosécutions Unit
‘San Joaquin County Courthouse, Room 202
222 E. Weber Avenue
Stockton, CA 95202
Telephone:  (209) 468-2470
Facsimile: (209) 468-0314

Stephanie B. Weissman

DA Riverside County

4075 Main Street

Riverside, CA 92501
Telephone:  (951)955-5491
Facsimile: (951) 955-5470

James R. Asperger, Esq.
O’Melveny & Myers LLP

400 South Hope Street

Los Angeles, CA 90071
Telephone:  (213) 430-6491
Facsimile: (213) 430-6407
Attorneys for Defendant

The Home Depot U.S.A., Inc:

Daniel J. Wright

DA Los Angeles County
Environmental Law Section

201 N. Figueroa Street, Suite 1200
Los Angeles, CA 90012
Telephone:  (213) 580-3209
Facsimile: (213) 202-5990

Rockard J. Delgadillo

City Attorney of the City of Los Angeles
Patty Bilgin, Supervising Attorney
Environmental Justice and Protection Unit
200 North Main Street, 5™ Floor CHE

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Telephone:  (213) 978-8344
Facsimile: (213) 978-8312

John Fioretta

- DA Santa Clara County

70 West Hedding Street

San Jose, CA 95110
Telephone:  (408) 299-7400
Facsimile: (408) 286-5437



